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Trustees’ Report

The Trustees present their report on the activities and results for the year ended 31 December 2010
This report will outine some of the highights of the year including the progress made against objectives,
the new challenges being undertaken and the goals being set for the future to achieve the aims of the
FiA Foundation

Objectives and Activities

Chanty objects

The objects of the FIA Foundation are the promotion of public safety and public health, the protection
and preservation of human life and the conservation, protection and improvement of the physical and
natural environment in particular by

= promoting research, disseminating the results of research and providing information on matters of
publc interest which may include road safety, automobile technology, the protection and
preservation of human Iife and public health, transport and public mobility and the protection of the
environment, and

s promoting improvement in the safety of motor sport, and of drivers, passengers, pedestnans and
other road users

The FIA Foundation 1s pnmanly a grant making orgamsation although it does manage some projects
internally The grant making policy 1s included in the Financial Policies section

Grants are made under the following categones

Safety, environment and mobility

This 1s the work carned out to fulfil our first object of “promoting research, disseminating the results of
research and providing infarmation on matters of public interest which may include road safety,
automobile technology, the protection and preservation of human hife and public health, transport and
public mobility and the protection of the environment” Our work in representational activities (see
below) also fulfils this cbjective

Motor sport safety

This 1s the work carned out to fulfil our second cbjective of “promoting improvement in the safety of
matar sport” Our research, fellowships, memberships and affilations expenditure (see below) also fulfil
this objective

Research, fellowships, memberships and affihations
As described above these are research, fellowships, memberships and affihations to achieve our
objectives

Representational activities and external communicatiens
As descrnibed above these are internally managed projects to achieve our first objective

Activities
In total the Trustees awarded grants and made transfers to restricted funds or designated reserves for
internally managed projects of €13,723,000 (2009 €13,496,000)

43 (2009 37) grants were made to individuat organisations from unrestncted funds amounting to
€6,728,000 (2009 €9,480,000), while €1,940,000 (2009 €2,494,500) was transferred to designated
reserves and €300,000 (2009 €nl) was transferred to restncted reserves A further €93,000 (2009
€728,000) was reallocated from general funds to designated reserves This transfer represented
underutiised grants from pnor penods

56 (2009 26) grants amounting to €4,755,000 (2009 €1,521,500) were made from the Moter Sport
Safety Development Fund restncted reserve

FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society
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The sphit of grants and designations to each of the categones discussed above i1s shown below

Category Amount
Safety, environment and mobility €6,409,000
Motor sport safety €6,785,000
Research, fellowships, memberships and affilations €179,000
Representational activites and external communications €350,000

Percentage
46 7%

49 4%

13%

26%

€13,723,000

100 0%

The level of ndividual grants and designations to fulfil the objects of the chanty were

Recipient and description

Safety, environment and mobility

External recipients

Alhance Internationale de Tourisme {AIT) + - Dnving Abroad Before You Go
Support for the AIT to develop the information 1t already gathers for wider
dissemination/publication to travellers driving aboard Documents on Blood Alcohel
Limits world-wide, speed imits in different countnes and seat belt legislation for example
were researched and made available on a wider basis The public benefit of this project
15 to make travellers abroad aware of road legislation in different countnes and more
road safety aware

Allgemeiner Deutscher Automobil-Club e V {ADAC) * - Eco-Test

On-going support in partnership with the ADAC for this unique testing imtiative which out-
performs all other tests of a car's environmental impact, because 1t covers all key
emissions in more realistic driving conditions, than the standard tests do  This inhative
raises awareness of the environmental impact of vehicles and encourages a “greener”
dnving style

Allgemeiner Deutscher Automobil-Club e V {(ADAC) * - EuroTap 2010

Support for this project, managed by the ADAC, on behalf of 12 European FIA clubs
which rates safety and emergency access of road tunnels 2010 saw EuroTAP assess
and rate tunnels in vanious East European countnes with tugh transit traffic volume for
the first ime (Croatia, Slovakia, Slovemia and Czech Republic) The output from the
preject 1s aimed at the general motonst (through media and advice leaflets) and road
professionals and policymakers The rating system used by the EuroTAP 1s a useful way
to draw public and media attention to poor tunnels and secure political action to improve
them

Allgemeiner Deutscher Automobil-Club e V {ADAC) * - Rescue Sheet International
Support for this ADAC-led project which came about as a result of a previous ADAC
accdent research project part-funded by the FIA Foundation which showed that the new,
safer design of vehicles may cause major delays in rescuing crash victims (due to the
complexity of restraint systems, arrbags etc ) and that often essential information on the
location of tems such as arrbags and their gas generators i1s not available to the
emergency rescue teams This project addressed these 1ssues in the form of “on-board
rescue sheets”, made available to car owners to place in therr vehicles in an appropnate
place or for the emergency services o access

Amend org — Be Seen, Be Safe

Amend org 15 a New York City~based nol for profit organisation and a registered NGO in
Ghana that addresses chuld pedestrran-injury i the developing world  Thus is its flagship
programme focussed on road safety instruction in Ghana, aimed at several levels of
society — pnmary school children, teachers, parents and community leaders This
initiative educates several levels of Ghanaian society on road safety with the aim to
reduce chitd mortalty as a result of road traffic accidents

Argentine Army School of Engineening —~ Graduate Course in Car Crash
Investigation

Suppor to the above institution to develop and implement a posigraduate course in car
crash investigation techniques and accident reconstruction Funding was also used for
student bursanes, teaching fees, the acquisition of automotive laboratory equipment for
brakes, seat belts and vehicle lights tests, as well as technical textbooks and
subscnphions to specialist publications More engineers educated in these aspects of
road safety can benefit the Argentine public in helping to understand better and
ulimately help prevent certain types of road accidents

Amount
awarded

€7,000

€100,000

€80,000

€60,000

€14,000

€30,000
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Asia Injury Prevention Foundation (AIPF} — International Helmet Vaccine Initative
Support for the AIPF's International Helmet Vaccine Inihative, which 1s intended to be a
major contnbution towards tackling one of the main road injury nsk factors dunng the
Decade of Action In ine with the Commussion for Global Road Safety’s
recommendation that the intemational community should work towards 100% helmet
weanng by 2020, this imbiative has catalysed and built helmet weanng programmes in
several developing countnes The imtiative included advocacy to encourage legislative
and enforcement progress, and investment to establish helmet factones and distnbution
programmes and has built on the successful model developed by the AIPF in Vietnam
supported by the FIA Foundation in 2009, in which close co-operation with government,
police and pnvate sectors saw increased enfercement, dramatic reductions in head
injunes and distnbution of more than 400,000 free helmets to children in South East
Asia

Association of Lithuanian Automobilists (LAS)* - Protect your Child from Dangers
on the Road

Support for a project to raise awareness amongst the Lithuaman public of child restraint
systems and their benefits and encourage therr use as well as to instil in children from a
young age the concept of restraints and their importance

Association pour le Développement de la Recherche sur le Cerveau et la Mozlle
Epiniére (ADREC) + - institute for Brain and Spinal Cord Disorders

Creation of an international centre of research and treatment of neurological and
psychiatric disorders and especially brain and spinal cord trauma  The public benefit of
this funding 1s to create a centre of excellence to treat people with the above condiions,
for example as a result of road traffic accidents

Automobile Association of Uganda (AAU)" - Road Safety Awareness and Advocacy
Project

Creation of an intemational centre of research and treatment of neurclogical and
psychiatnc disorders and especially brain and spinal cord trauma The public benefit of
this funding 1s to create a centre of excellence to treat people with the above conditions,
for example as a result of road traffic acoidents

Automobil Club din Moldova (ACM)* - Make Roads Safe Decade

Funding for the ACM to follow the examptes funded in previous years by the Foundation
in Armenia and Georgra to create a National Committee on Road Traffic Safety in
Moldova Part of its remit was to run public information and education campaigns with
Make Roads Safe/Decade of Action messages

Bundesanstalt fur Strassenwesen (BASt)/ Federal Highway Research Institute,
Germany/European Enhanced Vehicle Safety Committee (EEVC}) — Internationat
Student Technology Design Competition (European Part}

Support for the BASt's organisation of the European section of an intermmational student
competition for innovation in vehicle safety technotogy, which is held as part of the
br-annual Enhanced Safety of Vehicles (ESV) conference on vehicle safety The next
ESV conference will take place in Washington in June 2011 The public benefit of this
funding 1s to encourage more students to go into the field of vehicle safety technology to
ulimately make cars safer

Canadian Automobile Association (CAA)* - CAA Primer on Automohile Efficiency
and Emission Launch in Montreal

Funding for the CAA to launch the above Prnimer (completed in June 2008}, in November
2009 in Montréa!l The Prnmer provides the Canadian public with an understanding of the
changes that can be made at a personal, governmental and industry leve! to improve fuel
efficency and promote eco-dnving

Eastern Alhance for Safety and Sustainable Transport (EASST)+ - East Safe and
Sustainable Transport Network

EASST 1s a new UK chanty, the purpose of which is {o facilitate regional and cross-
border projects on road safety in Eastern Europe and Central Asia, concentrating imitially
on countnes of the South Caucasus (Armenia, Azerbaijan and Georgia) and Moldova
The funding 1s earmarked to  cover the minimal administrative costs of the new Chanty,
prowide follow-on support for projects in Armenia and Georgia within the framework of
the UN Decade of Action on Road Safety, facilitate the estabishment of new national
road safety councils in Azerbaiyan and Moldova, and imitiate key regional and cross
border projects which promote road safety The ultimate aim of this chanty 1s to create a
sustainable road safety infrastructure within this region and to raise the profile of road
safety as a public health and developmental 1ssue

eSafetyAware! AISBL+ - Choose ESC!

Funding of the Choose ESC! Campaign The aim is fo promote new active safety
technologes to the public See achievements and plans for the future section for
more information

€250,000

€28,000

€325,000

€35,000

€50,000

€22,000

€43,000

€100,000

€250,000
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Fédération Internationale de I’Automobile (FIA)* + - FIA European Traffic Education
Contest

200 children in 22 teams participated 1n the 2010 contest with the final being held in the
Farmer Yugostav Republic of Macedoria in September The grant assisted in paying the
organisation costs of the contest The public benefit of this contest 1s to raise awareness
amongst children throughout varous European countnes of road safety skills and i1ssues,
such as weanng helmets and safe cycling

Fédération Internationale de I’Automobile {FIA)* + FIA Stand at the French Auto
Salon

The FIA Foundation co-hosted, at the FIA’s mvitation, an exhibition stand at the French
Auto Salon in Pans in Autumn 2010  In terms of public benefit, it featured Decade of
Achon messages and provided road safety information to participants A crash-tested
Formula Cne car and a EuroNCAP crash-tested vehicle were also on display
Fédération Internationale de I'Automobile (FIA)* +/ Bert Morns Consulting -
Parking Cards for People with Disabilities

Support for the FIA European Bureau and Bert Morns (former Director of the AA
Motonng Trust) to implement this project to assist people with disabilities by persuading
countries ali over the world with no parking card scheme to adopt one, working towards
world-wide harmonisation of parking cards to achieve international recognition, achieving
reciprocity for parking card holders abroad, and providing parking card holders with
information on reciprocity and parking concessions abroad

Fondazione Tarlgna Florio - Eco Targa Florio 2010

Support for the 4™ Eco Targa Florio Green Pnx, which took place in October 2010 The
Eco version of Targa Floro race (the cldest auto compettion in the world which started in
1906), it 1s also part of the FIA Alternatives Energies Cup and has, despite the length and
difficulty of the course, the largest number of participants in the ZEV (Zero

Emission Vehicle) sector The event also includes a forum involving an international
stakeholder audience discussing safe Eco mobility The public benefit of this 1s to
promote the benefits of Eco mobility and Eco dniving

Forenede Danske Motorejere (FDM) * — EuroNCAP tests

EuroNCAP provides motonng consumers with a realistic and independent assessment of
the safety performance of some of the most popular cars sold in Europe The FIA
Foundation sponsors a car for testing as part of the programme which includes front and
side impact and pedestrnian testing The FIA Foundation also covers the cost of
production matenals when results are launched The public benefit of EuroNCAP 15 to
give consumers as much information as possible on how safe different vehicles are and
what safety features, such as ESC, to look out for when purchasing a car

Fundacion Gonzalo Rodrnguez — The Child Road User Safety Inthative A
promising Model for Latin Amenca and the Canbbean

On-going support for Phase IV of this project, located in Uruguay, which s focussed on
mault-sector and national interventions in the form of a public education campaign cn the
importance of child restraint systems (CRS) The aim of Phase |V was to develop a best
practice manual for Uruguay and as a model for use throughout the whaole region The
public benefit of this iIniative 1s to raise awareness in Latin America about the
importance of and need for CRS

Project for the support to the integration of Ukraine in the Trans- Euraopean
Transport Network (TEN-T)

FIA Foundation support of the public awareness component of a pilot project on read
safety in the city and region of Lviv, Ukraine as part of the above project The aim of the
project was to demonstrate how to cut the number of road deaths and injuries by
increasing seat belt usage and decreasing speeding and was carned out in collaboration
with the City and regional authonties and with the police

International Road Assessment Programme {(IRAP) +

Funding of €3 milion over 10 years, 1 € , an annual grant of €300,000 per year The
public benefit aim of IRAP s to provide independent, consistent road safety ratings
across the world to reduce death and senous injury by identifying shoricomings which
can be addressed by practical road safety improvements [n late 2009, a 10 year
Memorandum of Understanding was signed between the FIA Foundation and IRAP for
funding of €10 million over 10 years, in order to sustain IRAP’s remarkable progress and
capacity development and to ensure this continues during the Decade of Action

€30,000

€50,000

€20,000

€35,000

€200,000

€100,000

€8,000

€1,300,000
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Liverpool John Moores University (LJMU) - 10™ World Conference on Injury €110,000
Prevention and Safety Promotion

FIA Foundation sponsorship for the official dinner of the ‘Safety 2010" World Injury

Prevention Conference, which was organised by LIMU on behalf of the World Heatth

Orgamsation The FIA Foundation used the dinner, held at the Natural History Museum

in London, to launch the ‘“Tag' symbol of the Decade of Action to 1000+ international

njury prevention experts Sponsonng the dinner was a useful way to bnng the FIA

Foundation's work to an important constituency and added significant value and prestige

to the event and leveraged some additional benefit from our funding, aligning the social

event with the FIA Foundation's wider strategic objectives

National Road Safety Council of Armenia €15,000
Continued support of the National Road Safety Council In Armenia to coordinate NGO's,

companies, police and other orgamsations in road safety campaigns and activities The

aim and pubhc benefit of this organisation is to increase public awareness of road safety

issues in Armenia and stimulate public and private responses and activities to improve

road safety in Armenia

Ong Fondeil Ma Bon - Road Safety in Nilamey, Niger €40,000
Continued support for a road safety education programme for children aged 13-17 years

In secondary schools by estabhshing road safety committees in each school to mghlight

the dangers of excessive speed, dnnking and driving, and the importance of weanng

helmets and seat belts Funding was used to train 75 traners in road safety education

to lead the education programmes and set up committees in order to make the

programme sustamnable for the future The benefit of this programme 1s to educate and

raise awareness amongst school children of road safety 1ssues

Reial Automobil Club de Catalunya (RACC)* - E-Conduccion €50,000
FlA Foundation funding for Phase Il of this RACC study of the environmental impact of

cars from several perspectives, e g energy consumption, cimate change and air quahty

Phase Il 1s focussed on the development and implementation of a campaign to change

user behaviour and promote sustainable mobility The campaign comprised eight evenis

throughout various Spamsh aities, aimed at promoting to and advising the general public

on betier transport mode selection, eco-friendly vehicle purchasing and the use of Eco

driving practices

Reial Automdbil Club de Catalunya (RACC)* - E-Safety event €30,000
FIA Foundation support of an e-safety event in May 2010 Formula 1 driver, Fernando

Alonso Joined the eSafety Challenge team at the RACC's Safe Dnving School in Madnd

to demonstrate the benefits of ESC 1o press and policymakers He was Joined by former

World Rally Champion Carlos Sainz, who demonstrated an Emergency Brake Assist

system

Reial Automobil Club de Catalunya (RACC)*/Automobile Club d’ltaha (ACI)* - €88,000
Motorcycle Safety in Urban Areas — Part Il

FIA Foundation support for a motorcycle safety in urban areas campaign in Rome and

Barcelona, two European aties with a high incidence of motorcycle/moped use and

accidents involving two wheelers  The aim of the campaign was to raise public

awareness of the safety 1ssues of two wheeler transport  ACI also plans to formulate

proposals to improve mfrastructure in order to protect the safety of motorcychsts at

particular intersections, which recorded the highest number of accidents

Sesame Street — Road Safety Activities for Sesame Street Characters €79,000
FIA Foundation funding to allow Sesame Street to develop road safety activities for

Sesame Street characters and to develop a senes of Public Service Announcements for

use In the media to promote the Decade of Action messages throughoul the Decade

The pubhic benefit ts to promote the Decade of Action messages and improve road safety

for all

Strategic Worldwide Transportation 2020 (SWT2020) €20,000
SWT2020 1s a US-based research consortium which focuses on major global road safety

iIssues In terms of public benefit, membership allows the FIA Foundation access to

vanous reperis by SWT2020 and helps it to formulate and support activites based on

sound information

Test and Traiming Intemational — TT1 Road Safety Game €250,000
Funding for development of content of FIA Road Safety Game by Test and Tramning

International, an expenenced training programme development consultancy The public

benefit of this game will be to educate the public, parscularly children, in a fun and

stmulating way about road safety

FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society
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University of Michigan Transport Research Institute (UMITRI} — Report on Global €150,000
Automotive Safety Standards

With the development of the Global NCAP concept, UMITRI was commussioned by the
FIA Foundation to camy out a research project on global automotive safety standards for
use in Global NCAP once the programme I1s up and runming later in 2011 The am of
Global NCAP 1s to support a imited international testing programme of especially
interesting vehicles, and, where possible, assist the development of other NCAP

activibes around the world as well as to highlight major global trends in the automotive
safety arena and facilitate co-operation between NCAPs Like EuroNCAP, the public
benefit of Global NCAP 1s to give consumers as much informatton as possible on how
safe different vehicles are (depending where they are buiit and purchased) and to
highlight differences in the same model depending on which market they are aimed at
World Bank - Global Road Safety Facility (GRSF) €350,000
Launched dunng the 3™ UN Road Safety Collaboration meeting in London in 2005, the
GRSF funds the road safety activities of the World Health Organisation, the Asian banks’
road safety programme and facilitates travel to meetings for representatives of the UN
regional commissions  This funding 1s part of the five-year, 5 milhion US dollar

agreement made between the FIA Foundation and the World Bank in 2005/2006 and

was established to assist developing countries in the area of road safety The objective
of this initiative 1s to create a fund to support those areas of global road safety for which
there are currently hmited resources Globally, these areas include co-ordination,
research and development of tools and products, nationally, they include the
development of capacities, road safety strategies and national projects During 2010 the
GRSF focused on building links with other multi-lateral development banks (MDBs), as
part of a re-positioning to become the progress-chaser for implementation of the Jont
Statement on Road Safety agreed by the seven MDBs ahead of the Moscow Conference
in 2009 The FIA Foundation US$5 million support leveraged additional funding of at
least matching value from the World Bank itself and from government donors  Some of
the FIA Foundation funding and the additional money was spent effectively in conducting
country capacity reviews and capacity buillding, for example fostenng police networks

and supporting the work of IRAP In addition, FIA Foundation support for and
engagement with the Facility provided access and momentum for the FIA Foundation's
efforts to advance road safety within the MDBs, and the Facility itself played an important
catalytic role in funding the political process that led to the Moscow Declaratton and the
UN resolution for a Decade of Action

World Health Organisation (WHO) — Decade of Action on Road Safety €250,000
Funding to create a secretanat to carry out the UN General Assembly resolution request
that WHQO, in collaboration with the UN Regional Commissions, prepare a plan of action
for the Decade and co-ordinate the regular monitonng of the implementation and progress
the plan over the next 10 years of the Decade

Restncted funds

Latin NCAP €300,000
FtA Foundation support for a new Latin Amencan automobile crash test programme led
by consumer organisaticns and automobile clubs from Latin Amenca Latin Amenca s a
significant automotive manufacturing region producing around 3 6 mihon vehicles each
year mainly in Brazil  Given the significant improvement in vehicle safety dnven by
consumer crash test programmes in Europe, North Amenca and Australia, there 1s
growing demand to develop similar initiatives in emerging automotive markets A
growing concem among clubs and consumer groups I1s the marked difference in safety
performance of car models sold in Europe when compared with Latin Amenca Some
manufacturers remove from their Latin Amencan production key safety systems such as
arr bags, seat belt pre-tensioners, electronic stability control (ESC), that ensure high five
star scores in Europe’'s EuroNCAP tests The public benefit of Lattn NCAP 1s that it has
made it much harder for manufacturers to conceal so-caifed ‘de-specification’ of the
safety of the models they sell The programme also pushes them to include the latest
safety technologtes such as ESC which will be mandatory in Europe and the USA by
2012, but rarely fitted in Latin Amenca or in other emerging markets

FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society
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Internally managed projects (designated funds)

Environmental Policy and Research Programme €240,000
Funding to enable the FIA Foundation to build on momentumn generated by the

symposium “Towards a Global Approach to Fuel Economy” held in May 2008 and to

continue its close collaboration with the International Energy Agency (IEA), Intermational

Transport Forum {ITF) and United Nations Environment Programmes (UNEP)

Specifically, funding 1s used to work with the IEA on a senes of interventions, such as

regional meetings in the key areas of Asia and Afnca, sponsored research into key areas

of interest such as the implications of scenanos of likely vehicle trade patterns, and

advocacy for the promotion of a global fuel economy standard (through the development

of the Global Fuel Economy Iniiative and the FIA Foundation's “50by50" campaign}, as

well as for FIA Foundation support of the FIA *"Make Cars Green” campaign

See achievements and plans for the future section for more information

FIA Foundation Road Safety Regional Co-ordinator for Africa €100,000
Funding to appoint a Afncan regton road safety co-ordinator, with the long term strategic

and public benefit aim to improve road safety in Afrnica by working closely with local

African road safety iitiatives, as well as international donors and road safety bodies to

influence the will of governments in Afoca to understand the critical economic importance

of improving roads and road safety intiatives in Afnca

Global Seat Belt Vaccine Imtiative €250,000
The Global Seatbelt Vaccine Intiative 1s a major, multi-year, FIA Foundation contnbution

towards the Decade of Acton The Initative, managed by the FIA Foundation, supports

national and regional intiatives to promote and increase seat belt compliance, including

funding seat belt advocacy and awareness campaigns, providing seat belt shdes and

campaigh matenals and advice, and promoting the UN Collaboration manual on

restramnts  In line with the Commission for Global Road Safety’s recommendation, the

aim of the Imtiative and the projects it supports will be to secure 100% seat belt weanng

by 2020

Make Roads Safe (MRS) Campaign €750,000
Continued funding to promote the recommendations of the report of the Commussion for

Global Road Safety, most recently with the launch of the call for a “Decade of Action for

Road Safety” See achievements and plans for the future section for more

information

Road Safety Scholarship Programme €100,000
Following the success of its sponsorship of a John Smith road safety Fellow, the FIA

Foundation developed its own road safety scholarship programme run by former John

Smith Fellowship Trust Director Emma MaclLennan 2010 was the second year of the

scholarship with participants from countnes of the former Soviet Union, Africa, Asia and

Europe - all outstanding individuals currently working to make roads safe in their

countnes By tdentfying key individuals for road safety scholarship traning, the FIA

Foundation's aim, in terms of public benefit, is the long term strategic consideration of

road safety as a public health issue and its increased profile on the respective countres’

national agenda The 2009 pilot programme reaped concrete results upon their return

to their home countrnes two of the scholars were appointed to posts giving them

responsibility for the development of road safety policy and strategy in their countries,

reporting directly to their Prime Ministers

Urban Mobility Programme €100,000
In 2010 the FIA Foundation began to expand its work on wider sustainable mobility issues

In Collaboration with Vodafone, Forum for the Future and EMBARQ, 1t funded the SUM

2040 urban mobility study, taking Istanbul and Mumba as case studies, and engaging the

local clubs in seeking to frame scenanos for the future shape of urban mobility As a

further part of this programme, the FIA Foundation also supported the global dissemination

of the best practice in urban mobility transport hubs, working with the University of

Michigan's SMART programme

External grants €4,569,000
Restncted funds € 300,000
Internally managed projects (designated funds) €1,540,000
Total safety, environment and mobility grants €6,409,000

FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society
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Motor sport safety

External Recipients

FIA Institute for Motor Sport Safety + €1,800,000
The objective of the FIA Institute 1s to promote iImprovements in the safety of motor sport

by supporting and disseminating the results of research, supporting training of officials,

circuit and race personnel in safety procedures, practices and the use of equipment, and

supporting the protection of participants, officials and members of the public at

international motor sport events and monitonng motor sport safety trends in order to

identify research and regulation pnonties

Consultancy €230,000
Provision of specialist consultancy services on vanous aspects of motor sport and

general road safety to make motor sport as safe as possible for al!

Restricted funds — Motor Sport Safety Development Fund

Officials Skills Safety Training Programme (OSTP)

Funding Area 1: North, Central and South America

Organmizacidon Mexicana def Deporte Automovilistico Internacional (OMDAI) * - €45,000
Training for Motor Racing Officials and Trainers

National safety traiming for circuit officials (intervention and rescue) and trainers The

prmary goal s to improve competency levels of race officials in relation to motor sport

safety and to develop a network of trainers

Organizacion Mexicana del Deporte Automavilistico Internacional (OMDAI) * - €31,000
Training for Rally Officials and Trainers

Regional safety trairung for rally officials and trainers with participants from the North and

Central Amencan region The pnmary goal 1s to improve competency levels of rally

officials in relation to motor sport safety and improve alignment to the Institute’s best

practice framework for the OSTP

Club Automovwilistico de Nicaragua (CAN) * — Training for Motor Sport Officials and €55,000
Dnivers

A programme of basic safety training for motor sport officials and dnvers The primary

goal I1s to iImprove competency levels of motor sport officials and dnvers in relation to

motor sport safety

Automévil Club del Uruguay (ACU) * - Training for Motor Sport Officials €5,000
A programme of basic safety training for motor sport officials including new entrants and

existing officials The pnmary goal i1s to improve competency levets of motor sport

officials in relation to motor sport safety

Automobile Competition Committee for the United States (ACCUS) * - Training and €35,000
Certification for Karting Officials

Establishment of a traning and certification programme for karting officials The pnmary

goal 1s to improve competency levels of karting and event management officials in

relation 1o motor sport safety

Funding Area 2 Western and Northern Europe

Royal Automobile Club de Belgique {(RACB) * — Training for Motor Racing Officials €23,000
A national training programme for pit lane officials The pnmary goal ts to improve

competency levels of pit-lane officials in refation to motor sport safety

Royal Insh Automobile Club (RIAC) * - Training for Rally Officials €7,000
A national training programme for rally fire marshals The primary goalis to improve

competency levels of fire marshals in relation to motor sport safety

KNAC Nationale Autosport Federatie (KNAF) * - Training for Motor Sport Officials €60,000
Enhancement of the existing officials’ safety training programme The pnmary goal is to

create and deploy new training ifrastructure and to improve competency levels of all

motor sport officials in relation to motor sport safety

Real Federacion Espanola de Automovilismo {RFEDA} * - Training for Motor Sport €31,000
Officials

The aim of the project 1s to obtain updated accreditation for all officials training courses

The pnmary goal 1s to ensure full alignment to FiA Institute’s best practice framewark

Motor Sports Association (MSA) — Accreditation of Training Courses €28,000
The aim of the project i1s to obtain updated accreditation for all officials training courses

The prnimary goal 1s to ensure full ahgnment to FIA Institute’s best practice framework

FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society
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Funding Area 3 Central and Eastern Europe

Osterreichuscher Automobii-Motorrad-Und Tounng Club (OAMTC) * - Traiming for
Motor Racing Officials

Provision of a seminar on safety training for flag and track officials The pnmary goal s to
improve competency levels of flag and track officials in relation to motor sport safety
Union des Automobilistes Bulgares (UAB) * — Programme Enhancement and
Training for Rally Officials

An update to the existing officials’ safety training programme 1n preparation for their 2010
World Rally Championship (WRC) event by engaging the seriices of an FIA Institute-
approved Regional Traming Provider The grant agreement was terminated due toa
breach of the ASN's contract It 1s yet to be determined if they should repay the initial
€50,000 grant payment

Croatian Car & Karting Federation (CCKF) * - Training for Motor Sport Officials
and Competitors

Provision of a training seminar for mator sport officials and competitors The pnmary goal
1s to raise awareness regarding safety regulations and provide a forum to share
knowledge

The Autoclub of the Czech Republic {ACCR) * — Training for Rally Officials

To provide practical extncation training for rally officials The prmary goal was to train
new personnel and to improve competency levels of extrication officials This project has
now been completed

Slovak Association of Motor Sport {SAMS) * — Training for Motor Racing and Rally
Officials

Provision of a safety traming programme for rally and circuit officials The pnmary goal I1s
to improve competency levels of rally and circut officials in relation to motor sport safety
Auto Sport Federation of Slovenia, AS 2005 * — Training for Motor Sport Officials
and Dnivers

Provision of a safety training programme for both motor sport officials and drnivers The
pnmary goal I1s to improve competency levels of motor sport officials and drnivers in
relation to motor sport safety

Funding Area 4 Middle Eastern and Africa

Automovel e Touring Clube de Mocambique (ATCM) * — Training for Motor Sport
Officials

A programme of ongoing safety traiming for motor sport officials The pnmary goal 15 to
improve competency levels of motor sport officials in relation to motor sport safety
Namibia Motor Sport Federation (NMSF} * — Training for Motor Sport Cfficials
Provision of a safety traning programme for motor sport officials The pnmary goalis to
improve competency levels of motor sport officials in relation to motor sport safety
Automobile Club de Syrie * — Training for Motor Sport Officials

To provide medical and extrication training courses for motor sport officials The pnmary
goal 1s to improve competency levels of motor sport officials in relation to medical and
extrication techniques

Automobile Association of Tanzania (AAT) * - Training for Rally Officials

Provision of a safety training course for rally officials The pnmary goal 1s to improve
competency levels of rally officials in relation to motor sport safety

Funding Area 5 Asia and Oceania

Confederation of Australian Motor Sport * (CAMS) * — Upgrade e-Learning System
An upgrade to the e-Learning system to support ongoing traiming and development of
motor sport officials The pnmary goal i1s to enhance the e-Learning capability to improve
access to training and to improve competency fevels of all motor sport officials

Chinese Taiper Automaobile Association * (CTAA) - Training for Motor Sport
Officials

Provision of a safety training course for motor sport fire officials The primary goal is to
broaden the competency of fire officials in relation to fire safety techrigues for motor
sport

The Federation of Motor Sports Clubs of India * (FMSCI) — Training for Motor
Racing and Rally Officials

To provide a seres of training sessions for arcuit and rally officials by engaging the
services of an FIA Institute-approved Regional Training Prowder The pnmary goal i1s to
improve competency levets of rally and circuit officials in relation to motor sport safety

€10,000

€50,000

€30,000

€29,000

€30,000

€10,000

€27,000

€7,000

€60,000

€38,000

€75,000

€5,000

€50,000
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Motorsport New Zealand (MSNZ) * —Training Programme for Motor Sport Officials
Enhancement of the existing officials’ safety training programme by engaging the
services of an FIA Institute-approved Regional Training Provider The pnmary goals are
to create and deploy a new training infrastructure, to become accredited against the FIA
Institute best practice framework and to improve competency levels of all motor sport
officials in relation to motor sport safety

Motorsport Association of Pakistan {MAP) * — Training for Trainers

A programme to provide and conduct traimning for trainers by engaging the services of an
FIA Institute-approved Regional Traiming Prowider The pnmary goal is to establish a
network of trainers who can tmprove the competency levels of other motor sport officials
in relation to motor sport safety

Singapore Motor Sports Association (SMSA) * =Training programme for Motor
Racing Officials

A programme to recruit new circuit officials, conduct a traiming programme for Formula
One officials and to create a training nfrastructure by engaging the services of an FIA
Institute-approved Regional Training Provider The pnmary goal 1s to become capable of
maintaining the training and development needs of all motor racing officials in Singapore
Korea Automobile Racing Association (KARA) * - Training programme for Motor
Racing Officials

The creatton of a new officials’ safety training programme to conduct a senes of traning
courses by engaging the services of an FiA Institute-approved Regional Training
Prowider The pnmary goal 1s to create and deploy a new training infrastructure, to recruit
and train new officials and to improve competency levels for existing circuit officials for
the Formula One Grand Prix in 2010/2011

Ceylon Motor Sports Club {CMSC) * - Training programme for Motor Racing
Officials

A programme to recruit and train new motor sport offictals by engaging the services of an
FIA Institute-approved Regional Traiming Provider The pnmary goal 1s to create a
sufficrent network of traned motor sport officials in relation to motor sport safety

Officials Skills Safety Training Programme (QOSTP)

Facility Safety Improvement Consultancy Programme (FIP)

Funding Area 1 North, Central and South Amenica

Barbados Motoring Federation (BMF) *, being the National Sporting Authonty —
Master Plan for an Existing Motor Sport Facility, “Bushy Park"

Development of a master-plan for the refurbishment of an existing circuit ("Bushy Park")
n order to create a commercially and environmentally sustainable facility (FIA category
3) with an integrated kart circuit, drag stnp and additional dnver safety training
infrastructure A feasibility study into the economic viability of the facility was carned out
by KPMG

Funding Area 2 Western and Northern Europe

AKK-Motorsport, being the National Sporting Authonty — Master Plan for a New
Motor Sport Facility

Development of a master-plan for the construction of a multi-purpose FIA category 2
faciity, including a kart circuit and dnver training infrastructure The facility is to be
located in close proximity to Kouvola, one hour forty-five minutes’ dnve north east of
Helsinki A feasibility study into the economic viability of the facility was camed out by
KPMG

Motor Sports Association (MSA) *, being the National Sporting Authonty & The
Clypse Estate Limited, being the direct grant recipient — Master Plan for a New
Motor Sport Facility

Development of a master-plan for the construction of a multi-purpose FIA category 2 or 3
facility for two and four whee! motor sport events on the Isle of Man The faciity 1s to be
located in close proximity to Douglas, and has strong support from Manx govemment A
feasibility study into the economic viabilty of the facility was camed out by KPMG

€47,000

€35,000

€95,000

€124,000

€25,000

€1,067,000

€222,000

€200,000

€200,000
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Funding Area 3: Central and Eastern Europe

Polski Zwiazek Motorowy {(PZM) *, being the National Sporting Authonty &
Inwestycje Sportowe Polska, being the direct grant recipient — Master Plan fora
New Motor Sport Facility

Development of a master-plan for the construction of a mult-purpose FIA category 2 or 3
facility, including a kart circuit and dniver traiming infrastructure The facility 1s to be
located in close proximity to Gmina Baranow, one hour dnve south west of Warsaw As
the project has only just progressed to the commercial module, no feasibility data i1s
currently available

Slovak Association of Motor Sports (SAMS) *, being the National Sporting
Authonty & Slovak Nationzl Motorsport Centre, being the direct grant recipient -
Master Plan for a New Motor Sport Facility

Development of a master-plan for the constructon of a mult-purpose FIA category 2
facility, including a kart circuit and dnver training infrastructure The facility 1s planned to
be located at Zahorska Bystnca which lies 15km north of Bratislava A feasibility study
into the economic viability of the facility was camed out by KPMG

Funding Area § Asia and Oceania

Confederation of Australian Motor Sport {CAMS) *, being the National Sporting
Authonty — Master Plan for a New Motor Sport Facility

Development of a master-plan for the construction of a multi-purpose FIA category 1 or 2
facility, including a kart circuit, drag stnp and dover traimming infrastructure The facility 1s
to be located in close proximity o Melbourne and has strong government support,
including a recent commitment by the Victonan Government to contnibute $250 million
(€185 million) towards construction A feasibility study into the economic viability of the
faciity was carmned out by KPMG

The Federation of Motor Sports Clubs of india (FMSCI) *, being the National
Sporting Authonty & Madras Motor Sports Trust, being the direct grant recipient -
Master Plan for an Existing Motor Sport Facility

Development of a master-plan for the redevelopment of a multi-purpose FIA category 2
facility including a kart circust, integrated drag stnp and dnver training mfrastructure The
faciity s to be located in Chennar in South India and will complement other motor sport
developments in the country As the project has only just progressed to the commercial
module, no feasibility data s currently available

Automobile Association of Malaysia (AAM) *, being the National Sporting Authonty
& Sepang International Circuit, being the direct grant recipient — Master Plan for an
Existing Motor Sport Facility

Development of a master-plan for the refurbishment of an existing circuit (*Sepang
International Circuit”) in order to create a commercially and enviranmentally sustainable
facility with addittonal driver traiming infrastructure and facilities for a technical college
The Recipient has already secured commitment from the government (Mimstry of
Finance) to proceed with the initial phases of redevelopment A feasibility study into the
economic viability of the facility was carned out by KPMG

Special Projects

FIA Institute for Motor Sport Safety and Sustainability + -Environmental Standards
Development of a certifiable environmental sustainability standard and assessment tool
for motor racing circusits The pnmary goal is to develop infrastructure which can be
adopted by the industry to improve environmental credentials and reduce environmental
footpnnt

Automobile Competittion Committee for the United States (ACCUS) * -Research
Programme

A programme 1o undertake research to determine how to reduce the speeds of “Funny
Cars” by reducing engine power, thus reducing engine fallures which have been causing
loss of control and accidents The primary goal s to improve safety by reducing the
number of accidents

Facility Safety Improvement Consultancy Programme (FIP)

€200,000

€200,000

€245,000

€220,000

€231,000

€180,000

€125,000

_€2,023,000
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Young Driver Safety Scholarship Programme (YDSP)

Funding Area 1 North, Central and South Amenca

Automowil Club de Costa Rica (ACCR) * + - Dniver Development Programme

The creation of a new entry-level and elite development programme for karting, cireuit
and rally competitors The pnmary goal 1s to stmulate participation at entry-level and to
nurture and support talented young competitors

Organizacién Mexicana del Deporte Automovilistico Internacional (OMDAI) * -
Dnver Development Programme

To fund a new entry-level development programme for circuit competitors {*"Roger Peart
Dnving School™) The pnmary goal 1s to stimulate participation at entry-level circuit
compehtion

Automobile Competition Committee for the United States {ACCUS) * — Karting
Dnver Development Programme

To assist with funding an existing elite programme ("Skip Barber Karting Scholarship™)
focused on nurtunng karting competitors The pnmary goal 1s to assist transihion of elite
karting competitors to circuit racing

Automobile Competition Committee for the United States (ACCUS} * — Dnver
Annua! Symposium

The creation of a new entry-level annual symposium for karting and circuit competitors
(‘Road Racing Dnvers Club™) The primary goal 1s to educate young entry-level karting
and circuit competitors on the essential elements of successful and safe competition
Funding Area 2 Western and Northern Europe

Royal Automobile Ciub de Belgique (RACB) * — Senior Drniver Development
Programme

To assist with funding an exsting elite programme focused on nurtuning senior elite
circuit competitors The primary goal 1s to support sentor elite competitors’ transition to
top categones e g Indy Car, Formula One etc

KNAC Nationzale Autosport Federatie (KNAF) * — Karting Dnver Development
Programme

The creation of a new elte development programme for karting competitors The prmary
goal 1s to nurture and supporl talented young karting competitors

Royal Norwegian Automobile Club (KNA) * — Dnver Development Programme

To assist with funding an existing entry and elite level development programme for
young circuit and rally competitors The primary goal i1s to shmulate participation at entry-
level and to nurture and support talented young circuit and rally competitors

Svenska Bilsportforbundet (SBF) — Dniver Development Programme
Enhancement of an existing elite development programme for young circunt and rally
competitors The pnmary goal i1s to nurture and support talented young rally and circuit
competitors

Motor Sports Association (MSA) * — Dnver Development Programme

To assist with funding an existing elite development programme for young circuit
competitors The primary goal is to nurture and support talented young circurt
competitors

Funding Area 4 Middle Eastern and Africa

Automovel e Touning Clube de Mocambique {ATCM) * — Karting Dnver
Development Programme

To assist with funding an existing entry-level development programme for young karting
competitors The pnmary goal 1s to stimulate participation at entry-level karting
competition

Automobile Club de Syrie * - Dnver Development Programme

The creation of a new entry-level training course for circuit competitors The pnmary goal
15 to raise the awareness of entry-level circuit competitors on the essential elements of
successful and safe competition

Funding Area 5 Asia and Oceama

Confederation of Australian Motor Sport (CAMS) * —Dnver Development
Programme and Talent ldentification Capabilities

A programme to integrate a new safety initiative into existing elite development
programmes and enhance talent identification capabilites The pnmary goal s to
increase the competency levels relating to dnver and road safety for all participants in
elite development programmes

€27,000

€40,000

€89,000

€125,000

€37,000

€100,000

€39,000

€10,000

€82,000

€25,000

€24,000

€95,000
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Federation of Automobile Sports of the Peoples’ Republic of China (FASC) * -~
Dnver Development Programme

To assist with funding an existing entry-level development programme for young karting
competitors The primary goal 1s to simutate participation for entry-level karting
competition

Hong Kong Automobile Association (HKAA) * — Dnver Development Programme
The creation of a new road safety programme for young drivers interested in entenng
motor sport The pnmary goal 1s to stimulate motor sport participation and improve road
safety skills and knowledge for young dnvers

Korea Automobile Racing Asscociation (KARA) * —- Karting Dniver Development
Programme

The creation of a new entry-level development programme for young karting competitors
The pnmary goal is to stimulate parhicipation for entry-level karting competition
Motorsport New Zealand (MSNZ)} * — Driver Development Programme

The creation a new entry and elite-level development programme for young motor sport
competitors The pnmary goal 1s to stmulate participation at entry-level, to nuriure and
support talented young motor sport competitors and increase the competency levels
relating to driver and road safety for all programme participants

Special Projects

Fédération Internationale de I'Automobile (FIA)} * + - Traiming for Rally Officials,
Competitors and Trainers

A programme to develop traiming for rally officials, rally competitors and rally extrication
personnel The pnmary goal I1s to increase competency levels relating to safety for
officials, competitors and extncation personnel involved in WRC, regional and national
rally events

FIA Institute for Motor Sport Safety and Sustainability + - Young Driver Academy
The pnmary goals of the Academy are to prepare young drivers to compete at the
pinnacle of the sport, to Increase competency In the area of motor sport and road safety,
and to actively promote the principles of safety, fairness and responsibility both on and
off the track The dnvers will be required to perform an ambassadonal rote, promoting
the key messages from the curniculum, particularly those relating to safety

Young Driver Safety Scholarship Prcgramme (YDSP)

Externa! grants
Restricted funds
Total motor sport safety grants

Research, fellowships, memberships and affiliations

External Recipients

Clinton Global Imtiative

Funding for FIA Foundation membership of this initiative, which bnngs together business,
government and civil society leaders to undertake commitments to action across a range
of economic and social 1Issues |n terms of public benefit, CGl members have made
more than 1,400 commitments valued at $46 billion, which have already improved the
hives of 200 million pecple in 150 countnes

Consultancies

The FIA Foundation maintains the services of several specialist consultants who provide
consultancy on vanous technical road safety and environmental issues These help the
FIA Foundation formulate and support activites based on sound advice for maximum
public benefit

eSafetyAware!

Membership of the e-Safety Aware communication platform of which the Choose ESC!
campaign forms a part  FIA Foundation trustee, Jean Tod!, was elected the President of
e-Safety Aware in 2009, for a two year term  See achievements and plans for the
future section for more informatton

Global Road Safety Partnership (GRSP)

The GRSP bnngs together governments and governmental agencies, the prnivate sector
and cwil society orgamsations to address road safety issues in low and middle income
countnies The GRSP Is a hosted programme of the International Federation of Red
Cross and Red Crescent Societies (IFRC), based in Geneva Membership of the GRSP
has provided the FIA Foundation with a seat on the Executive Commutiee and a say in
the role and direction of the orgamisation  In terms of public benefit, GRSP programmes
help to improve road safety in vanous low and middle income countnes

€70,000

€100,000

€100,000

€77,000

€225,000

€400,000

€1,665,000

€2,030,000
€4,755,000

€6,785,000

€14,000

€40,000

€10,000

€10,000
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International Road Traffic and Accident Database {IRTAD) €5,000
IRTAD 1s an international database that gathers data on traffic and road accidents from

28 out of 30 OECD (Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development)

countnes The FIA Foundation has full access to the database and the information

contained within  In terms of public benefit, membership helps the FIA Foundation

formulate and support activittes based on sound information

United Nations Environment Programme {UNEP) - Partnership for Cleaner Fuels €50,000
and Vehicles (PCFV)

The award-winning PCFV was established in 2002 following the World Summit on

Sustainable Development to reduce vehicular air pollution in developing countnes

through the promation of clean fuels and vehicles It provides a cleanng house for

information and adwvice on environmental improvements, including the phasing out of

leaded fuel and introducing catalytic converters for low and middle income countries tn

terms of public benefit, it plays an important role in raising awareness amongst

govemments and motorists about cleaner fuel technologies

Internally managed projects (designated funds)

Fellowships €50,000
The FIA Foundation Fellowships are granted on recommendation of the Board of

Trustees to iIndividuals with significant expertise in a public policy or technical area of

value to informing the FIA Foundation’s work The Fellows receive a stipend from the

FIA Foundation and are then availlable o provide high tevel advice and support to the

F|A Foundation, for example, on specialist vehicle technology or public health issues

The Fellowships help the FIA Foundation formulate and support activites based on

sound advice for maximum public benefit

External grants €129,000
Internally managed projects (designated funds) € 50,000
Total expenditure on research, fellowships, memberships and affiliations €179,000

Representational activities and external communications

Internally managed projects {designated funds)

External Representation €150,000
The FIA Foundation continues to take an active role in external representation at

relevant intemational bodies, such as the UN, UN-ECE and EUJ This designation covers

travel, accommodation and related costs of these activities In terms of public benefit,

this funding means that the FIA Foundation ¢an ensure that road safety, environment

and sustainable mobiity maintain an important strategic presence on government and

nternational organisations’ agenda

FIA Foundation Website €40,000
The FIA Foundation manages varous websites, including the Make Roads Safe website

in addition to its own website This designation covers any technical add ons, for

example, online petitions, pictures and streamed film capacity In terms of public benefit,

this funding allows the FIA Foundalion to promote its messages to as wide an audience

as possible

international Policy Forum {IPF) €100,000
The IPF was held dunng FIA Conference Week in May in Italy and focussed on vanous

issues Member clubs received an update on the success of the Make Roads Safe

campaign following the Moscow Conference and the approval of a Decade of Action for

Road Safety The plan of when and how the Decade of Action would be launched and

implemented was reviewed, with a focus on the safe systems approach based around

five pillars building road safety capacity, mproving road user behaviour, building safer

roads and vehicles, and doing more to improve post-crash care  Other topics included

safe road assessment by IRAP, the FIA Foundation's global ‘vaccine intiatives’ on seat

belt and helmet use, Latin NCAP, and environmental sustainabiity work (Global Fuel

Economy Intiative (GFEI) and its 50by50 fuel economy campaign) The IPF audience Is

made up of representatives from the world’s motenng clubs and means that the FIA

Foundation, via the IPF, can promote its messages and activiies to an enormous

audience of motonists throughout the world

FIA Foundation for the Autornobile and Society
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Publicity €60,000
This designation covers printing costs for publications and production costs for advocacy

films Interms of public benefit, this funding allows the FIA Foundation to promcte its

messages to as wide an audience as possible

Internally managed projects (designated funds) €350,000
Total expenditure on representational activities and external communications €350,000
Summary:

External grants €11,483,000
Internally managed projects (designated funds) € 1,940,000
Internally managed projects (restricted funds) €300,000
Total expenditure and designations €13,723,000

* FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society member organisation
+ Other relaled party

Achievements and plans for the future

Safety, environment and mobility and external representation

In 2010 the FIA Foundation achieved its key objectives for more committed action to glebal road safety
through Its Make Roads Safe campaign, with the UN resolution for the Decade of Action for Road Safety
2010-2020 following the Moscow Conference in late 2009 and the Multilateral Development Banks' Joint
Statement on Road Safety

The ‘Moscow Declaration’, approved at the Moscow Ministenal Conference in November 2009, was
subsequently approved In a global road safety resolution by the United Nations General Assembly in
March 2010 establishing a Decade of Action for Road Safety 2011-2020 This event was very well
attended by member governments and 98 countries signed on to the resolution as co-sponsors  The
resolution was introduced by the Russian Federation and General Victor Kiryanov, Russian member of
the Commussion for Global Road Safety, opened the session Michelle Yeoh represented the Malaysian
Government and the Make Roads Safe campaign and spoke in the General Assembly chscussion The
UN resolution referenced the FIA Foundation and the Commission for Global Road Safety and
acknowledged the Make Roads Safe campatgn’s role “as a global tool for increasing awareness and
advocating increased funding for road safety”

Addnionally there were several other significant developments in the campaign in 2010  In advance of
the Moscow Ministenal the world's leading devetopment banks (World Bank, Afncan Development Bank,
Asian Development Bank (ADB), European Bank for Reconstruction & Development {(EBRD) , European
Investment Bank, Inter-Amencan Development Bank (IDB) and the Islamic Development Bank, known
collectively as the multilateral development banks - MDBs) 1ssued a joint statement *A Shared Approach
to Managing Road Safety’ which set out a plan to harmonise approaches 1o road safety policy and
committed to “ensure that safety 1s integrated in all phases of planning, design, construction, appraisal,
operation and mantenance of road infrastructure” The MDB statement is a direct consequence of the
Make Roads Safe campaign’s highlighting of institutional failings in pnontising infrastructure safety, and
in particular the 2008 'Making Roads Safer conference hosted by the FIA Foundation and the EBRD in
London which for the first time brought together the leading development banks to discuss road safety

A key prionty for the campaign in 2010 was to build closer contacts with the MDBs to maintain the
momentum from the November 2009 jont statement The FIA Foundation has recently extended the
term of its current co-operation agreement with the World Bank until 2012 and Memoranda of
Understanding were also signed with the |DB and the ADB pledging cleser co-operation on specific
projects to promote road safety

Also in 2010, the Make Roads Safe campaign had a number of opportunities to raise awareness of the
forthcoming Decade of Action The UN summit on the Miflennium Development Goals (MDG) met in
New York in September to review progress five years before the end date of 2015 The Make Roads
Safe campaign/FIA Foundation made a submission to the MDG process urging recogrition of the role of
safe roads in secunng wider development goals The FIA Foundation organised a side event to this
summit to launch a new report, ‘The Missing Link road traffic injunes and the Millenmum Development
Goals (MDGs)' by development expert Kevin Watkins  Also in the same week the bi-annual Global
injury Conference “Safety 2010" was held in Londen, bringing together thousands of leading injury and
public health experts from across the world The Make Roads Safe campaign hosted the official dinner
at London’s Natural History Museum

FIA Foundation for the Autornobile and Society
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The Commussion for Global Road Safety met i late October to review progress and to plan the future
work pregramme of the Cammussion and, by extension, the Make Roads Safe campaign  This will focus
on targeted high-level advocacy and ‘report card’ type reports on key aspects of delivery of the Decade
of Action, rather than the large scale advocacy campaigns and public engagement that have hitherto
been the main, and highly successful, role of the Make Roads Safe campaign

The Make Roads Safe campatgn has been highly successful and cost effective, transforming in four
years the international policy agenda on road safety and bringing new political awareness and
momentum to the issue The challenge now 1s to use the Commission for Global Read Safety to
encourage progress towards the objective of the Decade, and to strategically position road safety as a
global public health and development 1ssue that can be recognised and included in any post-2015 global
development agenda

In September 2010 a new global symbol for road safety was unvetled, ahead of the launch next year of a UN
Decade of Action, to tackle the annual 1 3 million deaths on the world’s roads The ‘road safety Tag' i1s
intended to become the road safety equivalent of the red ribbon for HIV/AIDS awareness or the white
wristband worn in the fight against poverty Every day 3,500 people are killed on the world's roads, ninety
per cent of casualties occurring in the developing world

The Tag was launched at special events in New York and London On 22nd September Former US
President Bill Clinton and New York Mayor Michael Bloomberg introduced the Tag at a special road safety
ceremony dunng the Clinton Global Intiative At a separate event senior officials from the UN and the
mulilateral development institutions unveiled the Tag in the UN headquarters duning the Millennium
Development Goals summit

On the other side of the Atlantic, the Tag was presented on 23rd September to an international audience of
more than a thousand injury prevention specialists attending the Safety 2010 world conference on injury
prevention in London Lord Roberison, Chairman of the Commussion for Global Read Safety, and Etienne
Krug, WHO's Director of Injury Prevention, unveiled the symbol at an event at the Natural History Museum

The Decade of Action will be officially launched on 11 May 2011, with events across the world The geal of
the Decade, endorsed by 100 governments in the UN General Assembily, 1s to ‘stabilise and reduce’ global
road deaths by 2020 The World Health Organization and the UN regional commissions are coordinating the
Decade on behalf of the United Nations

Global roll-out and use of the Tag 1s being coordinated by the Woerld Health Organization and the FIA
Foundation in preparation for the Decade of Action for Road Safety 2011-2020

In 2010 the FIA Foundation also continued to lead the pan-European “e-safety Aware” public/private
partnership promoting awareness of the importance and benefits of Iife-saving inteligent vehicle
systems to promote road safety, particularly through the “Choose ESC!" (Electronic Stability Control)
campaign This campaign i1s funded by the European Commussion

Significant Choose ESC! campaign events in 2010 included the second eSafety Challenge event, which took
place i July in the United Kingdom, with support from the UK Department for Transport, and focussed on
fleet managers and owners and demonstrations of eSafety systems such as ESC, Blind Spot Monitonng,
Warning and Emergency Braking, and ABS for motorcycles Also dunng the event, the new EuroNCAP
rating system of eSafety equipment was launched and four car manufacturers were presented with awards
which under this new rating for the quality of their eSafety technologies The event, which gathered more
than 300 delegates and representatives of the press, also saw the launch of a fleet awareness study

Among the speakers dunng the opering session were David Ward, Director General of the FIA Foundation,
Ilvan Hodac, Secretary General of the European Automobite Manufacturers’ Association (ACEA), Peter
Tyroller, President of the European Association of Automotive Suppliers ({CLEPA), and the Chairman of Euro
NCAP, Andre Seeck

Other events included campaign launches and eSafety equipment demonstrations in Spain, New Zealand,

Finland, Canada, China, France, Germany and Portugal in collaboration with the relevant national metoring
clubs The latter event was opened by eSafetyAware President and FIA Foundation trustee Jean Todt, the
Portuguese Mimister of Interior Dr Rui Pereira, and Portuguese motonng club President Carlos Barbosa

The FIA Foundation will continue to support eSafety Aware in 2011
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In 2010, the FIA Foundation continued to concentrate its environmental activihes on the key 1ssue of
promoting greater global fuel economy through its close collaboration with the |EA, ITF/OECD and
UNEP to develop a Global Fuel Economy Imtiative (GFEI), launched in March 2009 Since that launch,
the initiative has established its own website (www 50by50campaign org) and updated and re-pnnted its
launch document in several languages The FIA Foundation continues to host the GFEI secretanat and
15 responsible for supporting the organisation of GFE| meetings, maintaining the budget and the
website, co-ordinating communication between GFEI partners, raising funds, raising awareness at
global level, and co-ordinating the preparation of the biannual GFEI roundtable report

The GFEI has also continued to engage with stakeholders highlights include the meeting in New Delhi
in November 2009 at which Kamal Nath, India’s Minister for Transport and Highways, welcomed the '50
by 50" campaign with enthusiasm, and committed to fully engage with the campaign The event, which
included high fevel delegates from industry, government, international agencies and NGOs, also heard
him descnbe the GFE! as a laudable initiative, which would add momentum to efforts to promote this
1ssue worldwide

Another major development for GFEI came just before the Copenhagen meeting in December 2009,
when the Major Economies Forum (MEF) highhighted the 50by50 campaign as an example of indwidual
and collective country actions that can help overcome market barners and realise the potential of
advance vehicles The MEF 1s a group of 17 developed and developing economies (Australa, Brazil,
Canada, China, France, Germany, India, Indonesia, ltaly, Japan, Mexico, Russia, South Africa, South
Korea, United Kingdom, Sweden and Denmark plus the EU Commission} instigated by the US
government earlier in 2009 It is tasked with encouraging the development and deployment of low-
carbon and clmate-fnendly technologres GFEI is planning a major campaign with stakeholders in those
countries which are signatones of the MEF —~ including the motoring clubs — to take this commitment
forward into greater action

GFEI events in 2010 took place in Latin Amenca, Central and Eastern Europe, Afnca, and the Middle East
including a major event in the United Kingdom in October in collaboration with Chatham House and the IEA
to launch GFEI's first Annual Report, and plan its next steps It has also developed an extensive programme
of research-based Working Papers, including an analysis of scrappage schemes, an assessment of
differential incentive and fiscal initiatives, and a study of the flows of used cars (using Mexico as a case
study), all of which were published in 2010 as GFE| Working Papers

Aside from the GFEI, the FIA Foundation has begun to expand its work on wider sustainable mobility
issues Itis a lead partner with Vodafone, Forum for the Future and EMBARQ in the SUM 2040 urban
mobility study, taking Istanbul and Mumbai as case studies, and engaging the local clubs in seeking to
frame scenanos for the future shape of urban mobility It s also supporting the global dissemination of
the best practice in urban mability transport hubs, working with the University of Michigan’s SMART
programme Finally, and in partnership with UNEP and IRAP, the FIA Foundation is looking at ways to
support safe and sustainable road building, with a focus on Africa This “Share the Road” intiative was
launched 1n Narirobi in fate 2010, with attendees from UNEP, the Kenyan and UK Governments, as welt
as representatives of the investing community

The Motor Sport Safety Devetopment Fund
Due to therr expertise in the area of motor sport, day to day running of the Motor Sport Safety
Development Fund is carned out by the FIA Institute for Motor Sport Safety (The Institute)

Officials Safety Training Programme (OSTP)

The pnmary goal of the OSTP 1s to actively faciitate an increase in competency levels of officials from
around the world The Institute has employed a mult-tiered strategy to achieve this objective firstly, it
has created a best practice framework for the development of officials, secondly, it 1s accrediting
National Sporting Authonty (ASNs) that adopt the framework, and thirdly, it will develop and rollout
knowledge shanng and training infrastructure This strategy i1s augmented further through the provision
of grants to those ASNs that embrace the framework

The project work associated with the Best Practice Framework was completed in 2009 The intention 1s
to review the framework in 2011, with a view to releasing an updated framework pnor to the next round
of funding in September 2011
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The project work for the accreditation inibiative was completed in 2009 and, the focus going forward wall
be to accredit more ASNs and help to facilitate the appointment of additional Regional Traiming
Providers (RTPs) The Institute have so far accredited ASNs in Austraha, Ireland, the Unted Kingdom,
Tawan and Turkey Both the ASNs in Australia and the United Kingdom have been assessed and
approved to perform RTP roles The data gathered from the 2010 OSTP survey indicated that 38 ASNs
were intending to seek accreditation Furthermore, 33 indicated that going forward, they would seek to
work with an Institute approved RTP, if the appropnate financial support was provided by the Fund In
support of this, ten RTP-related funding applications from ASNs have received financial suppont as part
of the past two funding cycles

The focus for traming in 2011 and 2012 will be to develop a suite of framming modules to be used to train
ASNs Iin the use of the programme’s Best Practice Framework and Accreditation Guidelines In addrion,
tratming will be developed to help raise the competency levels of those responsible for completing
funding applications The goal 1s to conduct regional training sesstons in the lead-up to when funding
applications open each September It should be noted that it will be the responsibility of the Institute’s
RTPs to provide tailored framing services to ASNs, including the training of trainers However the
Institute will be developing a competency framework which will ultimately be adopted by ASNs to assist
with career management and curnculum design

Young Dniver Safety Programme (YDSP)

The primary objectives of the YDSP are te promote dnver safety amongst young metor sport
competitors, actively facilitate the development of young drnivers from around the world and foster
sustainable pathways from entry-level (grass-roots} to international competition The Institute has
employed a two-tiered strategy to achieve the above objectives firstly, 1 has developed a best practice
framework for dnver development, and secondly, it 1s curently implementing an intemational education
programme n the form of a development academy, "The Institute Young Dnver Excellence Academy"
This strategy will be augmented further through the provision of grants to those ASNs that embrace the
framework, as well as through the provision of scholarships for drivers to attend the Academy

The project work associated with the Best Practice Framework has now been completed The intention
1S to review the framework in 2011, with a view to releasing an updated framework prior to the next
round of funding In September 2011 It s also planned to implement an accreditation imtiative for the
YDSP similar to that of the OSTP, and it 15 anticipated that this will be avatlable prior to the next round of
funding

As agreed by the Fund Management Committee, the institute will manage the Young Dniver Excellence
Academy (Academy) as part of the YDSP, with financial support being provided by the Fund The
Academy Is being tnalled in 2010 and 2011 with full implementation planned to take place from the
middle of 2011 Going forward, the Academy will run over an 18-month cycle with a 6-month overlap
with new recruits being selected in the second half of a given year and the majornity of the training taking
place the follow:ng year

The pnmary goals of the Academy are to prepare young dnvers to compete at the pinnacle of the sport,
to increase competency in the area of motor sport and road safety, and to actively promote the
principles of safety, fairness and responsibility both on and off the track The dnvers will be required to
perform an ambassadonal role, promoting the key messages from the curnculum, particularly those
relating to safety

The Institute 1s working with Elite Sports Performance (ESP) and Test and Traiming Internatitonal (TTI) to
manage the selection process and to develop and deliver the curnculum Each ASN was able to submit
up to two dnver applications, which were reviewed by ESP, TTl and the Institute 77 young drnivers from
48 different countnes were put forward to participate in the inaugural Academy This figure was reduced
to 18 dnvers who were assessed at a three-day Selection Event in Melk, Austna Based on the
performance of the participants at the selection event, the 12 strongest participants were chosen to
attend the Academy Over nine months, the dnvers are attending six separate workshops of between
three and five days at different locations in Europe The curnculum commenced at the end of February
with the first workshop held in Edinburgh

Facility Safety Improvement Consultancy Programme (FIP)

The pnmary cbjectives of the FIP are to improve the safety standards and the economic and
environmental sustainability of motor sport faciities around the world The Institute has employed a
mult-tiered strategy to achieve the above objectves firstly, it has developed a strategic afliance with a
suitably qualffied facility specialist, secondly, it has developed a best practice framewark for facility
development, and thirdly, and with financial support from the Fund, from 2010 it has been facilitating the
provision of specialist advice to ASNs (and their endorsed partners) in relation to the development of
safe and sustainable motor sport facilittes
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Unlike the other programmes, the nature of the FIP has necessitated the formation of a strategic
partnership with a specialist consultancy orgarisation, Apex Cirguit Design {(Apex) Apex has been
tasked with developing a best practice framework and working with individual ASNs (and their endorsed
partners) on facility improvement projects with financial support from the Fund

The project work associated with the Best Practice Framework has now been completed The intention
is to review the framework in 2011, with a view to releasing an updated framewaork prior to the next
round of funding tn September 2011

As per the Institute’s agreement with Apex, they have been providing spectalist consultancy services to
those ASNs that are awarded a FIP grant The work for each project 1s inked with the Best Practice
Framework and 15 divided into five core components including the Vision-Plan Module, the Commercial
Module, the Environmental Module, the Operational Module and the Master-Plan Module The estimated
elapsed time for each project 1s 26 weeks with up to six projects running concurrently If, at the
conclusion of the Commercial Module {conducted by KPMG), the project is not considered to be
economically viable, the project will be terminated

Financial Policies

Reserves policy
The long term objective of the trustees is to “preserve the capital base in real terms for as long as 1s
practicable whilst meeting the needs of the beneficianes at a sustainable leve!”

The investment policy descnbed below has been formulated as a result of the aim of the reserves policy
Therefore, the majonty of the reserves have been invested in assets which are used 10 generate
incoming resources to fund grants, internally managed projects and support costs

The Foundation also holds a proportion of its reserves in cash  Since June 2006 the investment
managers have been set an income target which increases by the Consumer Price Index for Europe
annually The managers are able to manage the portfolio on a total return basis and may therefore draw
down capital to meet the income target, but they must also meet a capitat growth target  With this
approach, volatiity in short term income should not impact on expenditure The policy should also
ensure that the Foundation 1s able to continue in its current manner should unforeseen events arise

The level of reserves 1s reviewed annually and compared to long term plans and the expected growth of
the oniginal donation from the Fédération Internaticnale de I'Automobile once the Consumer Pnce Index
for Europe I1s apphed

Since the infroduction of the new investment mandate the Foundation has gamned a clear idea of how
much income 1t will receive dunng the forthcoming year Therefore programme funding penods can now
fall in ine with calendar years, based on projected income for the same year

The Trustees have also agreed to hold cash balances of approximately €9 million, which equates to
approximately one year's programmes expenditure This policy would facilitate cash flow and would
help prevent a forced sale of assets during penods of poor investment returns

At 31 December 2010 the FIA Foundation held €627,000 (2009 €750,000) in designated funds,
€290,955,000 (2009 €290,762,000) in general funds and €29,803,000 (2009 €16,466,000) in the
revaluation reserve An additional €35,487.000 (2009 €39,420,000} 1s held within restncted reserves

The purpose of the designated funds 1s provided within the Trustees' Report  The designated funds
should be expended during the next financial year

The purpose of the restncted funds 1s provided within the Trustees’ Report  Restncted reserves should
be expended within the next 5 years
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Investment policy

The FIA Foundation has the power to deposit or invest funds not immediately required for its purposes
In, or upon, such mvestments, secunties or property as the trustees may think fit The Trustees may
nvest only after obtaining advice from a financial expert The Trustees have the power to delegate the
management of investments to a financial expert but must review the performance of the investments
regulary

The principle objective of the investment policy is 1o seek total return in the long term to provide for real
Iife iIncreases in annual expenditure while preserving the chanty's capital base in real terms This is to
balance the needs of both current and future beneficianes and therefore the assets are invested for long
term returns rather than to maximise short term income

The Foundation's policy i1s that all investments are externally managed by investment managers
appointed by the Board of Trustees The Foundation’s investments are under the safe custody of
JPMorgan

The investment policy adopted by the Investment Commitiee and Board of Trustees has been
incorporated into the Statement of Investment Pnnciples, which has been distnbuted to each investment
manager and the Foundation's custodian, JPMorgan

Investment managers have discretion to make all asset allocation decisions in order to achieve the
following investment objective, as stated in the Statement of Investment Principles

“The Trustees’ mvestment objechive is to produce an annual income of the order of €10 milfion per
annum, net of management charges and any imecoverable tax, whilst maintamming the capital value of
the fund in real terms over the long terrm By “in real terms™ it 1s meant that the capital value of the fund
needs to increase broadly in hne with the Consumer Pnce Index (CPI) for Europe”

Performance of the managers 1s assessed by comparning the portfolio returns of each manager on a
three year rolling basis The results are reviewed by the Investment Committee on a quarterly basis

The invesiment strategy will be reviewed by the Investment Committee and the Board of Trustees at
least once every three years

Investment managers are permitted to use denvatives to amelorate the nsk associated with holding
shares in different currencies  The managers have discretion regarding the level of denvatives that can
be used but they must comply with Inland Revenue guidelines Cumrently denvatives take the form of
forward currency contracts or options

Grant making policy for general funds

The FIA Foundation considers applications for grants from any orgamisation or indmvidual, prowiding the
application meets at least one of the general or specific objectives of the chanty Applications are
considered by the Programmes Commuttee which makes recommendations to the Board of Trustees
The Trustees have made commitments to make grants and made provisional designations for internally
managed projects as descnbed within this report

Grant making policy for the Motor Sport Safety Development Fund
As previously reported the day to day running of the Motor Sport Safety Development Programme I1s
carmned out by the FIA Institute for Motor Sport Safety (The Institute)

All funding applications are submitted via the Institute’s secure funding portal during a two-week penod
in late August and September each year ASNs are able to submit up to three applications under each

of the three safety programmes dunng each funding cycle Funding applicattons are required to meet a
range of funding cnitena, and in particular need to demonstrate an alignment, or an intention to align, to
the relevant best practice frameworks

The Institute 1s responsible for assessing the applications, and making recommendations to the Fund
Management Committee The Fund Management Committee meets in November each year to consider
the recommendations For the applications that are approved, each recipient is required to enter into a
funding agreement with the Institute Upon the successful execution of the agreement and the fulfiiment
of any grant conditions, the recipient 1s paid the first 40% of the grant The recipients are then required
to penodically report progress, and upon the approval of these reports, subsequent grant payments are
made Going forward, a small number of recipient projects will be selected for a detaled audit and
evaluation
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For applications submutted from 2010 onwards, for countnes classified by the World Bank as having
middle or low income per capita, funding rehef will be prowided by way of a reduchon n the percentage
contrbution required by an ASN for a given project This policy will apply to the Cfficials Safety Training
Programme and the Young Dniver Safety Programme only Specifically, for ASNs in countnes classified
as having high income, the existing 50% contribution will be required, for ASNs in countnes classified as
having upper and lower middle income, the ASN will be required to make a 40% contnbution to a
project, and for ASNs in countnes classified as having low iIncome, the ASN will be required to make a
30% contnbution to a project

Other policy changes relate to capping the number of applications and cumulative funding per ASN per
penod For applications submitted from 2010 onwards, the number of applications which can be
submitted and approved for an ASN will be capped at no more than three per funding penod

Furthermore, for the Facility Improvement Programme, an ASN will be capped at one application For
the Officials Safety Traiming Programme and the Young Driver Safety Programme, these will be capped
at no more than two for each programme, whilst not exceeding the overall cap of three In conjunction
with the application cap, the cumulative grant total for an ASN will not be able to exceed €425,000 per
funding penod This figure represents the hypothetical total of the grants payable if the maximum
amount 1s paid for each of the three safety programmes under the existing funding critena

Financial Review

Investment assets and returns

The Foundation’s asset allocation pelicy 1s influenced by the investment objective descnibed within the
investment policies above The performance of each manager 1s assessed against the targets laid
down in the Statement of Investment Pnnciples

The Feundation’s investment assets increased in ine with movements in the markets and hence all
managers met the target of increasing the value of the fund by the European Consumer Price Index
dunng the year

As reported last year and based on the results of the first 3 years of the Investment Mandate, the
Foundation decided to replace AXA as one of is managers A Working Group to the Investment
Committee was set up and they interviewed six prospective managers on 26 Apnl 2010 A shortlist of
two managers was then invited to return for a second interview by the full Investment Committee on 12
July 2010 Following these interviews, the Committee recommended the appointment of Sarasin and
Partners LLP This appointment was ratified by the full Board of Trustees on 14 July 2010 At this
meeting the Board decided to also appoint Sarasin and Partners LLP as the Investment Managers for
the Motor Sport Safety Development Fund portfolio

On 14 May 2010 the mandate was formally withdrawn from AXA, with respect to the Foundation's
general funds €80 2 millon was received from AXA which was placed on Treasury Deposit until 3
August 2010 when €78 millon was transferred to Sarasin and Partners LLP  The remaiming €2 2 million
was retained by the Foundation as a contribution towards the income target

On 15 September 2010, the assets from the Motor Sport Safety Development Fund were transferred
from AXA Investment Managers to Sarasin and Partners LLP

The income target for 2010 was set at €10,767,000 (€3,589,000 from each manager) The targel can
be met by a combination of income achieved by the portfolio and capital withdrawals from the adoption
of the total return mandate Durning the year both AVIVA and Morgan Stanley met this target The
AXA/Sarasin portfolio paid €3,029,000 from their portfolic  The Foundation did not request the
additional €560,000 to meet the income target dunng the year, but this has been requested since the
year end

At 31 December 2010 investment assets (including the investment properties) were valued at
€330,094,000 (2009 €323,301,000) Investment assets produced unrealsed gans dunng the year of
€24 554 000 (2009 €24,320,000, as restated) These gains are stated after €10,207,000 (2009
€11,929,000) was withdrawn from the portfolio  €7,630,000 (2009 €8,929,000) was withdrawn from the
Motor Sport Safety Development Fund portfolio

The investments include €27,952,000 (2009 €33,292,000) relating to resincted reserves The
remaining €302,142,000 (2009 €290,009,000) relate to unrestncted reserves The unrealised gain
relating to unrestncted reserves was €23,486,000 (2009 €23,980,000, as restated) Restricted reserves
achieved an unrealised gain of €1,068,000 (2009 €595,000, as restated)
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On the recommendation of the Investment Committee a deskiop valuation of the Foundation's
Investment Properties was undertaken by Montagu Evans, Chartered Surveyors The Committee
intended to use the valuation to determine whether there had been a significant reduction in the value of
the bulldings since the last valuation in 2007 On 31 March 2011, Montagu Evans reported that the
estimated value of the properties was £7,166,000 When translated to Euro the value of properties has
fallen to €8,339,000 This valuation has been incorporated wathin the Financial Statements as the best
estimate of the value of properties at the year end The resulting unrealised loss for the year of
following this valuation was €1,377,000 (2009 unrealised gain of €671,000)

A full valuation of properties will be carned out by the Foundation at the end of 2011

Ali asset allocation decisions are taken by our investment managers Diversification 1s by asset class,
investment manager and investment style Two managers used Options dunng a penod to protect the
portfolioc The value of the option positions at the year end was €215,000 (2009 €150,000) The
Faoundation has significant exposure to foreign currency due to its globally diversified portfolo Currency
hedging facibties are utilised where investments are not he!d in Euro  The unrealised loss on forward
contracts was €5,070,000 (2009 €3,802,000) This level of denvatives 1s representative of ther use
dunng the year

At 31 December 2010, the asset allocation of our iInvestments was

Investment Amount
€000's Percentage

Listed equity investments € 239,027,000 72 4%
Fixed and vanable interest stocks € 57,359,000 17 4%
Alternative iInvestments € 3,876,000 11%
Property funds € 6,770,000 21%
Investment Properties € 8,339,000 25%
Cash € 14,723,000 4 5%
Total € 330,094,000 100 0%

Approximately 24 1% (2009 42 9%) of unrestncted investment assets are held in Europe, 13 1% (2009
10 0%) in the UK, 48 1% (2009 34 9%) in North Amenca and 14 8% (2009 12 2%) spread across Asia
and the Pacific and other countries 45 6% (2009 50%) of restncted fund investments are held in
Europe and 54 4% (2009 50%) are held in North Amenca

Accrued income due from investment managers of €874,000 (2009 €1,934,000) 1s included within
current assets €552,000 (2009 €1,568,000) relates to unrestncted reserves and €322,000 (2009
€366,000) relates to restncted reserves

€6,069,000 (2009 €7,793,000) was received from investment assets dunng the year to 31 December
2010 The income yield from mvestments was 1 8% (2009 2 4%) [nvestment manager's performance
15 assessed by the Foundation on a total return basis rather than on income yields

Investment manager costs of €1,058,000 (2009 €1,004,000) comprising manager fees, performance
fees and custodian fees are included within the costs of managing investments in the Statement of
Financial Activities  Under the Statement of Investment Ponciples investment managers are able to
charge fees which they deem to be fair as thewr performance 1s assessed by considenng capital
appreciation net of fees The level of fees charged represents 0 31% (2009 0 3%) of the value of the
portfolio  Fees levels are closely momitored on a quarterly basis by the members of the Investment
Committee and fees which are deemed excessive are discussed with the investment managers

Given the prevailing economic conditions the Foundation has budgeted for significant reductions in
overhead costs and reduced expenditure on programmes in 2011 The income target for the year has
been set at €9,210,000 (€3,070,000 for each manager) (2010 €10,767,000) This will be paid in two
equal instalments in June and Decernber 2011

Voluntary Income

The Foundation received a donation of €20,000 from Ferran Spa following an auction of some of its
Formula One team items after the Japanese Grand Pnx The donation is restricted for use within the
Make Roads Safe Designated fund
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Restricted Income

FIA Motor Sport Safety Development Fund

The Féderation Intermationale de I'Automobile (FIA) World Motor Sport Council agreed in 2008 to
establish a Motor Sport Safety Development Fund (‘the Fund’) through which the €38,667,000 ($60
miliion) it receved from a McLaren Mercedes fine could be used to promote safety in motor sport
working with its ASNs worldwide This funding was donated to the FIA Foundation for use as a
“‘restncted” fund and for disbursement over five years A Management Committee, made up of Nick
Craw, Norbert Haug, Max Mosley, Michael Schumacher and Jean Todt was appointed to consider
applicattons The day to day running of the fund s carned out by the FIA Institute for Motor Sport
Safety

The fund 1s invested by the Foundation in a separate fixed income portfolic managed by AXA
Investment Managers, and since September, Sarasin and Partners LLP Dunng the year income of
€877,000 (2009 €1,083,000) was received from the investments and s available for use in future years

eSafetyAware!

During the year the Foundation acted as a coordinator for the European Commission funded project
“eSafety Challenge and Awareness Raising” A grant of €899,000 (€2009 €26,000) was received from
the European Commission The grant agreement runs for two years and will cease on 31 December
2011 The second tranche of funding 1s awaited from the European Commission

Latin NCAP

The Foundation supported a new Latin Amencan automobile crash test programme led by consumer
organisations and automobile clubs from Latin Amenca The programme reflects the significant concemn
among clubs and consumer groups that there 1s 2 marked difference in safety performance of car
models sold in Europe when compared with Latin Amenca

The Foundation receved €72,000 from International Consumer Research and Training and €36,000
from Inter-Amenican Development Bank as general contnbutions towards the costs of the programme

FIAT (€55,000), PSA Peugeot Citroén (€56,000) and Volkswagen AG (€40,000) rembursed the costs of
their cars and the cost of the crash testing programme for each of their models which were selected

Chantable expenditure

Grant making in 2010 amounted €13,723,000 (2009 €13,496,000) Grants from unrestncted funds
amounted to €6,728,000 (2009 €9,480,000), while €1,940,000 (2009 €2,494,500) was transferred to
designated reserves and €300,000 (2009 €ni!) was transferred to restncted reserves A further €93,000
(2009 €728,000) was reallocated from general funds to designated reserves Ths transfer represented
underutihsed grants from pnor pertods

€2,176,000 (2009 €3,819,000) was transferred from designated reserves to cover expenditure on
internally managed projects, including Make Roads Safe, which was a major activity of the Foundation
this year These costs are descrnibed as direct costs in the Statement of Financial Activities

€6,217,000 (2009 €3,280,000) was spent by the FIA Motor Sport Safety Development Fund Grants of
€4,755,000 (2009 €1,521,000) were made by the fund The remaining €1,462,000 (2008 €1,759,000)
represented the management fees charged by the FIA Institute for Motor Sport Safety, costs incurred to
assess applications for grants by the Programmes Chairman and investment manager fees

€930,000 (2009 €139,000) was spent by the eSafetyAware! restricted fund The expenditure funded
demonstration events around Europe and the production of dissemination matenals

€50,000 (2009 €nil) was spent by the Make Roads Safe Hellas fund in Crete, promoting road safety
activities on the island

The Latin NCAP Car Testing Programme spent €549,000 The majonty of expenditure incurred was in
respect of the cost of purchasing the vehicles, transportation to Europe, and the costs of crash testing
each vehicle

Chantable activittes (grants, direct costs and support costs) represent 90 8% (2009 90 4%) of the total
expenditure of the Foundahon

Governance costs including Trustees’ expenses, directors’ insurance and allocated support costs were
€584,000 (2009 €592,000) which represent 2 8% (2009 3 0%) of total costs
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As descnbed in the reserves policy above the Foundation set the level of charitable expenditure based
on the investment income and returns for the previous year €8,049,000 (2010 €11,240,000) was
agreed dunng the November 2010 Board of Trustees meeting as being available for unrestricted fund
grants and nternally managed projects for Programme Year 2011 which runs from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2011

Grants of €3,944,000 (2009 €4,755,000) were approved by the Motor Sport Safety Development Fund
Management Board durtng their meeting in Novermber 2010

Prior penod adjustment

Change in the accounting treatment for Listed Investments

During the year the accounting treatment for valuing listed investments was changed to align with
current best practice Previously listed investments were valued at theirr market value in their native
currency at each quarter end and were translated at the rate ruling at this date Net gains and losses
ansing on revaluations and disposals during the period were included in the SOFA Realised gains and
losses ansing on the sale of investments represented the difference between the most recent quarterly
market valuation and the proceeds from the sale of the investment Unrealised gains and losses
consisted of the movement in the market value of iInvestments on a quarterly basis No adjustment was
made to transfer unrealised gains or losses to realsed gains and losses in the SOFA when an
investment was sold dunng the financial year All other movements were treated as unrealised

Listed investments are now valued at their market value in their native currency at the end of the
financial year and are translated at the rate ruling at this date Cash held as part of an investment
portfolio, as a monetary asset, 1s franslated using the closing rate method Net gains and losses ansing
on revaluations and disposals dunng the peniod are included in the SOFA Realised gains and losses
arise on the sale of investments and represent the difference between the valuation at the beginning of
the financial year and the proceeds from the sale of the investment Unrealised gans and losses
consist of the movement in the market value of remaining investments on an annual basis

An adjustment of €3,431,000 (€3,327,000 relating to unrestncted funds and €104 000 relating to
restncted funds) has been made between realised and unrealsed losses in the prior year 1o reflect the
change of treatment

As a result of the adjustment realised gains on investment assets have increased to €14,425,000 from
€10,994 000 (representing realised gains on unrestricted funds of €14,055,000 and realised gains of
€370,000 on restncted funds) Unrealised gains on investment assets have correspondingly decreased
to €24,320,000 from €27,751,000 (representing unrealised gains on unrestncted funds of €23,725,000
and unrealised gains of €5695,000 on restricted funds) This adjustment is for disclosure purposes only
and there 1s no effect on overall reported results

Structure, governance and management

Chanty status

FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society 1s registered i England and Wales as a chanty, number
1088670, and as a company hmited by guarantee, number 4219306 The liabihty of the Trustees, as
members, 1s Iimited to £1  The FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society 15 governed by its
Memorandum and Articles of Association  The directors of the FIA Feundation are its Trustees for the
purposes of chanty law The terms of the charity’s Memorandum and Articles of Association exclude the
power to raise funds by the means of taxable trading, where such trading fall cutside its charitable
objecis

Trustees
The membership of the Board 1s set out on page 48

All Trustees served throughout the year apart from Mr M Angle who was appointed on 5 November
2010 Dr J Llewellyn resigned on 10 Apnl 2011

The Board of Trustees must maintain a mmimum membership of three and a maximum membership of
15 Trustees are elected by an ordinary resolution by members at the Annual General Meeting

With the exception of the Chairman, one third {or the nearest one third) of the Trustees must retire at
each AGM It was agreed in July 2008 to amend the upper age mit for new trustees from 70 {o 75
years, which Is the same as for existing trustees Therefore trustees who celebrate their 75" birthday
duning their term of office cannot seek re-election
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Mr B Perko, Mr C Macaya, Mr A Vatanen and Mr B Darbelnet retire at the 2011 AGM Mr C Macaya, Mr
A Vatanen and Mr B Darbelnet, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election Mr B Perko 1s not
eligible for re-election COn his retirement he will become an Honorary Member of the FIA Foundation

Recruitment and appointment of new Trustees
Due to interest from Foundation members on how to apply to become a Trustee of the Foundation the
secretanat has developed an application pack as well as a process of handling applications

The secretanat will send any person who has formally expressed an interest in applying to become a

Trustee the job and person profile and application form  The secretanat will also inform them of the

following

¢ the number of vacancies on the Board of Trustees at the time,

s the deadline of 1 June for applications,

+ that applications will be considered only if there 1s a vacancy and at the June/July meetings of the
Board of Trustees, and

« 1f an application 1s approved by the Board of Trustees, it would then be submitted to the Annual
General Meeting in October/November

Induction and traiming of new Trustees
When a new Trustee 1s appointed, they receive the following documents as induction
a copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Assoctation,
« alst of the members of the Board of Trustees, the Programmes, Investment, and Audit and
Remuneration Committees and ther contact details,
the FIA Foundation travel and expenses policy for trustees,
information from the UK Chanty Commission website on the responsibilities of UK Chanty Trustees,
a copy of the Trustees’ Liability Insurance, and
the Trustee Code of Conduct

As the majonty of our Trustees hail from our member organisations, they are generally already aware of
the Foundation's achvities and familiar with the Foundation’s senior staff members They are also all
senior executives of major organisations and thus comfortable with what i1s and 1s not expected of them
in therr role as Trustees Traiming is therefore handied on an ad hoc basis and will be arranged for any
Trustee If they request it

Conflicts of interest

The FIA Foundation has a policy on conflicts of interest which applies to Trustees, employees and
members of the FIA Foundation’s decision-making committees  When a Trustee has a matenal interest
in any grant, investment or other matter being considered by the FIA Foundation, that Trustee does not
participate in the deciston on that grant or other matter The same pnnciple applies to staff and
members of committees who are able to influence the chanty's funding decisions

Committees and meetings

Under the Memorandum and Articles of Association the Trustees are required to hold at least two
meetings a year Currently the full Board meets three imes a year However, there are three additional
Trustee sub commuttees (the Investment Committee, the Programmes Committee and the
Remuneration and Audit Committee) which also meet a minimum of once a year

The Investment Committee reviews the financal management of the chanty’s assets and makes
recommendations to the Board of Trustees The membership of the Investment Committee consists
of Mr T Keown (Chairman and Foundation Treasurer), Mr M Angle, Dr J Llewellyn (until 10 April
2011), Mr M Mosley and Mr B Perko

The Programmes Committee reviews and approves grant applications for further consideration by the
Board of Trustees The membership of the Programmes Committee consists of Mr M Mosley
{Chairman), Mr R Darbelnet, Mr J Dawson, Mrs J Despotopoulou, Mr C Gérondeau, Mr C Macaya and
Mr D Njoroge

The Audit and Remuneratton Committee reviews the salanes and benefils of Foundation staff and
approves any salanes and benefits changes for the Director General and Deputy Director General It
also examines the draft Financial Statements before submission to the Board of Trustees and
recommends any necessary internal audit measures The membership of the Remuneration and Audit
Committee consists of the Treasurer (Chairman), Mr T Keown, and at least one other Trustee, Dr J
Llewellyn (until 10 Apnl 2011) Mr C Macaya, 15 a member ex officio, as indeed he 1s of all Committees
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Public Benefit Reporting

The Trustees confirm that they have referred to the guidance contained in the Chanty Commission’s
general gurdance on public benefit when reviewing the chanty's aims and objectives and in planming
future activities and setting the grant making policy

Internal contrel and nsk management

The Trustees are responsible for the FIA Foundation’s systems of internal control and effectiveness No
system of intemal control can provide absolute assurance agamst matenal misstatement or loss
However, the FIA Foundation's system 1s designed to provide the Board of Trustees with reasonable
assurance that there are proper procedures in place and they are operating effectively

The key elements of the internal control system are

o delegation there s a clear organisationat structure with documented lines of authonty and
responsibility for control

e reporting the Board of Trustees approves and reviews annual budgets and expenditure targets
and monitors actual and forecast expenditure and investment reports on a regular basis The
Trustees may, and do, commisston internal audit reports from time to time

« nsk management the potential nsks ansing from the FIA Foundation's activities have been
documented in a comprehensive risk register

The major nsks comprise

+ Loss of Trustees The resulting impact of this on the decision making of the Board due to the loss
of knowledge, skills and experence

« Loss of staff The operational impact on projects and the day-to-day running of the Foundation

» Disaster recovery and planning: The impact of IT systems fallure or loss of data following the
destruction of property, equipment and records through fire, flood or terronsm

+ Stakeholder perception. The loss of reputation and influence and the resulting ability to obtain
part funding from partners

The Trustees have reviewed the major nsks to which the FIA Foundation 1s exposed and can confirm
that all reasonable measures are being taken and systems have been estabhshed to control or mitigate
the effect of these nsks on the achievement of the chanty’s objectives The financial nsks of the
Foundation are discussed in greater detail below

Financial nsk assessment

The Foundation 1s exposed to a number of financial nsks including credit nsk, market nsk, foresgn

exchange nisk, and liquidity nsk due to its investing actwittes

e Credit nsk The pnincipal financial assets are investments and bank balances and credit rnisk I1s
prnimanly attnbutable to bank balances To mitigate the nsk the Foundation reviews the level of
balances held with each institubon and reviews credit ratings

e Market nsk Investments are subject to market movements This 1s managed by investment
through diversification across a broad range of asset classes, geographies, investment managers
and investment strategies The use of denvatives in the form of forward exchange contracts and
options 1s permitted with the approval of the investment Commuittee to assist with managing these
nsks Denvatives are not used for speculative purposes

« Currency nsk: The Foundation i1s exposed to translation and transaction foreign exchange nsk
from non Euro denominated assets This 1s managed by forward exchange contracts to hedge
these exposures

s Liguidity nsk The Foundation seeks to ensure sufficient iquidity 1s avaitable to meet foreseeable
needs The Foundation aims to hold cash deposits of approximately €9 mithon to ensure volatihty in
short term income should not impact on expenditure and to ensure that the Foundation 1s able to
continue in is current manner should unforeseen events anse

Trustees responsibiities for the financial statements

The trustees (who are also directors of the FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society for the
purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the trustees have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)
Under company law the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the chantable company and of the incoming
resources and application of resources, including the income and expendilure, of the chantable
company for that period

FIA Foundation fer the Automobile and Society
Page 26




Trustees’ Report

In preparing these financia! statements, the trustees are required to

- select sutable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,

- observe the methods and prnciples in the Chanties SORP,

- make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it I1s inappropnate to presume
that the chartable company will continue In business

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to

show and explain the charntable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial

statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding

the assets of the chantable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregulanties

In so far as each of the Trustees 1s aware

- there s no relevant audit information of which the chantable company’s auditors are unaware, and

- the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that nformation

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial
information included on the chantable company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislatton in other
Junisdictions

Other matters

Changes in fixed assets
The movements in fixed assets are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the financial statements

Related party transactions

The chanty has designated some of the income generated by the investment portfolio for internally
managed projects These are listed in note 16 and descnbed in the Trustees’ Report  Grants made to
organisations which are members of the chanty are disclosed in the Trustees’ Report  All other related
party transactions are disclosed in note 23

Chantable donations
Dunng the period no other chantable or polihical contnbutions were made by the chanty

Auditor
A resolution for the reappointment of Grant Thomton UK LLP as auditar of the chanty will be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

On behailf of the Trustees

Carlos Macaya
Chairman
14 July 2011
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o Grant Thornton

Report of the Independent Auditor to the Members of
the FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society

Independent auditor's report to the members of The FIA Foundation for the Automobnle and
Society

We have audited the financial statements of the FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society for the
year ended 31 December 2010 which compnse the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet,
the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the chantable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Comparnies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the chantable company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the chantable company and its members as a body, for our audit
work, for this repon, or for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditors

As explained more fully in the Trustees’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 26, the trustees
(who are also the directors of the FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society for the purposes of
company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statemenis and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements :n accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descniption of the scope of an audit of financial statements s provided on the APB's website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private ¢fm

Opimon on the financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

- give a true and far view of the state of the chantable company’s affairs as at 31 December 2010
and of its Incoming resources and application of resources, including its n¢ome and expenditure,
for the year then ended,

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

- have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimon the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparies Act 2006

requires us to report to you if, n our opmion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept or retums adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

- certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

- we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

G iTontn—ut nf

Janet Crookes

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Oxford

14 July 2011
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Statement of Financial Activities
For the year ended 31 December 2010 (incorporating an income and
expenditure account and a statement of recognised gains and losses)

Incoming rescurces
Voluntary income
Investment income
Chantable activities

Resources expended
Cost of generating funds
- Costs of managing investments

Charitable activities

- Safety, environment and mobility

- Motor sport safety

- Research, fellowships, memberships
and affilations

- Representational activibes and
external communications

Governance cosis

Total resources expended

Net outgoing resources before
transfers

Transfers between funds

Net cutgoing resources for the year
Other recognised gains and losses:
Realised (losses)/gains on investment
assets

Net income and expenditure

Unrealised gains and losses
Unrealised gains on investment assets

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds:
Balance at 1 January 2010

Balance at 31 December 2010

Unrestricted Restrcted As restated

Funds Funds Total Total

2010 2010 2010 2009

Note €000's €000's €000’s €000's
2 20 - 20 100

3 5,192 877 6,069 7,794
4 - 1,158 1,158 26
5212 2,035 7,247 7.920

5 1,191 76 1,267 1,278
5 7,534 1,629 9,063 9,618
5 2,108 6,141 8,249 7,088
5 308 - 308 135
5 815 - 815 764
5 584 - 584 592

5 12,540 7,746 20,286 19,475
(7,328) 5711} {13,039) {11,555)

(300) 300 - -

(7,628) (5411) {13,039) {11,5655)

(2,451) 410 (2,041) 14,425

(10,079) (5,001) {15,080} 2,870

23,486 1,068 24,554 24,320

13,407 (3,933) 9,474 27,190

16-18 307,978 39,420 347,398 320,208
16-18 321,385 35,487 356,872 347,398

All amounts relate to continuing operations

Information up to and including net iIncome and expenditure represents the information required by the
Companies Act 2006 It excludes unrealised gains on investments in accordance with the Statement of

Recommended Practice “Accounting and Reporling by Chanties” as revised in 2005

The notes to the accounts form an integral part of the financial statements
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2010

Fixed assets

Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities
Creditors amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets
Total assets less current habilities

Net assets

Funds
Unresinicted funds
- Designated funds

- Revaluaton reserve
- General funds

Restncted funds

Total chanty funds

The notes to the accounts form an integral part of the financial statements

Note

12
13

14

15

16

17

18

2010 2009
€000's €000's
4,238 4313
330,094 323,301
334,332 327614
10,335 9,306
16,059 14 435
26,394 23,741
{3,854) (3,957)
22,540 19,784
356,872 347,398
356,872 347,398
627 750
29,803 16,466
290,955 290,762
321,385 307,978
35,487 39,420
356,872 347,398

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 14 July 2011 and signed on their

behalf by

Tim Keown / -
Treasurer .

Company Number 42193086
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Cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009

€000's €000's

Net cash outflow from operating activities {14,042) (9,204)
Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed assels (54) (35)

Purchase of fixed asset investments {326,450) (242,082)

Proceeds from sale of fixed asset investments 365,341 209,228

Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities 38,837 {32,889)

Increase/(decrease) in cash 24,795 (42,093)

Reconciliation of changes in resources to net cash outflow from
operating activities

2010 2009

€000’s €000’s

Netl outgoing resources {13,039) {11,555)
Depreciation 127 126
Loss on disposal of assets 2 5
{Increase)/decrease n debtors {1,029) 1,582
{Decrease)/increase in creditors {103) 638
Net cash outflow from operating activities (14,042} {9,204)

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

2010 2009

€000’s €000's

Increase/{decrease) in cash in the penod 24,795 (42,093)

Effects of realised foreign exchange (losses)/gains (7,695) 8,986

Effects of unrealised foreign exchange losses (4,991) {9,193)

Movement in net funds 12,109 (42,300)

Net funds at 1 January 2010 18,673 60,973

Net funds at 31 December 2010 30,782 18,673
Analysis of changes in net funds

At 31

At 1 January Exchange December

2010 Cash flows movement 2010

€000's €000's €000's €000's

Cash at bank 14,435 1,624 - 16,059

Cash held as part of the
investment portfolio 4,238 23171 (12,686) 14,723
18,673 24,795 {12,686) 30,782
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Principal accounting policies

Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the hustoncal cost convention except for
investments which have been valued at market value, as detaled below They comply with the
Statement of Recommended Practice "Accounting and Reporting by Chanties” (“the SORP") as rewised
in 2005, tagether with the reporting requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and applicable accounting
standards except for non depreciation of investment properties

Investment properties

All of the chanty's investment properties are held for long-term investment and are included in the
balance sheet at their open market values The surpluses or deficits on annual revaluation of such
properhes are transferred to the revaluation reserve  Depreciation 1s not provided in respect of freehold
investment properties  This 1S 1n accordance with SSAP19 which, unlike the Companies Act 2006, does
not require depreciation of investment properties Invesiment properties are held for their investment
poiential and not for use by the chanty and so their current value 1s of pnme importance The departure
from the previsions of the Act Is required In order to give a true and fair view

The pnncipal accounting polictes for the chantable company are set out below and have rematned
unchanged with the exception of the policy relating to the valuation of isted investments (as stated
below)

Change in the accounting treatment for Listed Investments

Duning the year the accounting treatment for valuing listed investments was changed to align with
current best practice Previously listed investments were valued at their market value n thetr native
currency at each quarter end and were translated at the rate ruling at this date Net gains and losses
ansing on revaluations and disposals dunng the penod were included in the SOFA Realised gains and
losses ansing on the sale of investments represented the difference between the most recent quarterly
market valuation and the proceeds from the sale of the mvestment Unrealised gains and losses
consisted of the movement in the market value of investments on a quarterly basis No adjustment was
made to transfer unrealised gains or losses to realised gains and losses in the SOFA when an
investment was sold dunng the financial year All other movements were treated as unrealised

Listed investments are now valued at ther market value in their native currency at the end of the
financial year and are translated at the rate ruling at this date Cash held as part of an investment
portfolio, as a monetary asset, is translaled using the closing rate method Net gains and losses ansing
on revaluations and disposals dunng the penod are included in the SOFA Realised gains and losses
anse on the sale of investments and represent the difference between the valuation at the beginning of
the financial year and the proceeds from the sale of the nvestment Unrealsed gains and losses
consist of the movement in the market value of remamning investments on an annual basis

An adjustment of €3,431,000 (€3,327,000 relating to unrestnicted funds and €104,000 relating to
restricted funds) has been made between realised and unreahsed losses in the pror year to reflect the
change of treatment

As a result of the adjustment realised gains on investment assets have increased to €14,425,000 from
€10,994,000 (representing realised gains on unrestricted funds of €14,055,000 and realised gains of
€370,000 on restricted funds) Unrealised gains on investment assets have correspondingly decreased
to €24,320,000 from €27,751,000 (representing unrealised gains on unrestrncted funds of €23,725,000
and unrealised gains of €595,000 on restncted funds) This adjustment 1s for disclosure purposes only
and there 15 no effect on overall reported results

Incoming resources

All ncoming resources are included in the SOFA when the company i1s legally entitled to the income and
the amount can be quantified with reasonable certainty More specific details relating to each category
of ncome are shown below

Grants
Grant income 1s recognised when the chanty has met the conditions of receipt and is entitled to the
funds
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Voluntary Donations

All monetary donations are included in full when receivable, provided that there are no denor-imposed
restrictions as to the timing of the related expenditure, in which case recogrition 15 deferred untit any
preconditton 1s met

Investment mcome

Investment income, including associated tax recovenes, but with the exception of iIncome receivable in
respect of fixed interest secuntes, 1s recognised when receivable Income receivable in respect of fixed
interest secunties 1s recognised on the accruals basis

Rental income
Rental income 1s recognised when receivable, on a straight line basis

Resources expended
Expenditure 1s accounted for on an accruals basis

Resources expended compnse

Costs of generating funds

Cost of managing Investments

This includes investment manager fees, staff salanes and other costs directly attributable to the
management of the investment portfolio

Costs of chantable activities

The chantable activities flow from the Chanty's vision and purpose, which are highlighted in the
Trustees’ Report  The pnmary chantable activities as disclosed in the SOFA are as follows Safety,
environment and mobility, Motor sport safety, Research, fellowships, memberships and affilations, and
Representational activities

The costs of chantable activities include grants made to external orgamisations and direct expenditure
The accounting treatment for these are as follows

Grants payable

Grants payable are recogmsed In the financial statements in the year in which they are approved and
such approval has been communicated to the recipients, except to the extent that it 1s subject to
conditions that enable the Foundation to revoke the award

Direct costs
This 1s expenditure made from designated reserves relating to internally managed projects Details of
costs can be found in note 7

Support and indirect costs
These are shared and indirect costs associated with the man activities of the Foundation Details of
costs can be found in note 8

Allocation of support and indirect costs
Costs which relate directly to an employee are allocated against the activities they undertake
Support and indirect costs are apportioned on the basis of the number of full time equivalent staff

Governance costs
Governance costs include external audit and legal advice on governance matters, directors and officers
insurance, trustees’ expenses and an apportionment of shared and indirect costs

Irrecoverable VAT
The irecoverable VAT element 1s included in the expense category to which it relates

Fund accounting
Restncted funds are donations and other incoming resources received or generated for expenditure for
specified purposes as laid down by the donor (see note 18)

General funds (unrestricted funds} are donations and other incoming resources received or generated
for expenditure on the general objectives of the chanty

Designated funds are general funds which have been designated for specific purposes by the trustees
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On occasion the Programmes Committee will recommend the transfer of mories between funds where
grants have been underutilised by recipients The transfer of these monies 1s subsequently approved by
the Board of Trustees

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assels are capialised at cost where their acquisition value 1s greater than €750, and are
stated at cost net of depreciation

Depreciation 1s calculated to write down the cost of all tangible fixed assets excluding investment
properties by equal annual instalments over their estimated useful economic lives, calculated on a
monthly basis

The rates applicable are

Freehold properties 2%
Fixtures and fittings 20%
Computer equipment 33 1/3%
Investments

Properties

Investment Properties are included at therr estmated market value in therr native currency at the
balance sheet date, translated at the rate ruling at the date of valuation, the year end Investment
Properties are formally valued at teast every five years by professional valuers and are reviewed
annually to ensure the most recent formal valuation 1s still reasonable

Listed iInvestments

Listed investments are valued at therr market value in their native currency at the end of year financial
year and are translated at the rate ruling at this date Cash he!d as pari of an investment portfolo, as a
monetary asset, 1s translated using the closing rate method Net gains and losses ansing on
revaluations and disposals dunng the penod are included in the SOFA Realised gains and losses anse
on the sale of investments and represent the difference between the valuation at the beginning of the
financial year and the proceeds from the sale of the investment Unrealised gains and losses consist of
the movement in the market value of iInvestments on an annual basis

Revaluation reserve
The excess of market valuations over the cost of investments 1s included within the revaluation reserve

Foretgn currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transactton Monetary assets and habilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date Non-monetary assets and habilities in foreign currencies are transiated
at the rates ruling at the date of acquisition, or average rate if not matenally different Exchange
differences are dealt with in the SOFA The exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date were as
follows

Currency 2010
Sterling €1£ €1 £0859327
US Dollar €18% €1 51338622

Exchange gains and losses are allocated to the appropnate income or expenditure category

Taxation

The activities of the Chanty fall within the exemptions conferred by section 505 and 506 of the Income
and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 Consequently, no corporation tax i1s provided for in the financial
statements

Retirement benefits

Defined contnbution scheme

The pension costs charged against the SOFA are the contnbutions payable to the schemes in respect of
the accounting penod
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Leased assets

All assets not owned by the Foundation are regarded as operating leases and the payments made
under them are charged to the SOFA on a straight line basis over the lease term

Liabilities

Liabilities are recogrused when there 15 a legal and constructive obligation committing the chanty to the

expenditure

2 Voluntary income

The charty received the following

Donations

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009

€000's €000's

20 100

A donatien of €20,000 was received from Femran SPA following the auction of team items following the
Japanese Grand Prix The donation 15 restnicted for use within the Make Roads Safe designated fund

3 Investment income

Investment iIncome compnses income from

Listed equity investments

Fixed and vanable interest stocks
Interest on cash held at brokers
Investment properties

Bank deposits and financial markets

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009

€000's €000's

3,020 2,496

2,208 4,160

115 438

677 616

49 84

6,069 7,794

The above investment income 1s denved from assets held within the UK, except for the 1ncome from

listed secunttes which are held both within and outside the UK

4 Income from charitable activities

Contnbutions to eSafetyAware!
European Commission Grants

Contributions to the LatinNCAP car testing programme
International Consumer Research and Traming
Inter-Amencan Development Bank

FIAT

PSA Peugeot Citroen

Volkswagen AG

Total iIncome

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
€000°s €000's

899 26

T2 -

36 -

55 -

56 -

40 -

259 -

1,158 26
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5 Resources expended
Support
Direct and
expendi- indirect
Grants ture costs 2010 2009
€'000's €000's €000's €000's €000's
Costs of managing investments - 1,267 1,267 1,278
Safety, environment and
mobility 4,601 3,202 1,260 9,063 9,618
Motor sport safety 6,646 1,383 220 8,249 7.088
Research, fellowships,
memberships and affiiations 129 S0 129 308 135
Representational activities
and external communications - 359 456 815 764
Governance costs - - 584 584 592
11,376 4,994 3,916 20,286 19,475

See note € for details of grant funding Detailed descnptions of grant allocations are provided n the

Trustees Report
See note 7 for detalls of direct expenditure

See note 8 for support and indirect cost allocations

6 Grants

Grant expendifure dunng the year was as follows

Wnte

back

under

utihised
Grants grants 2010 2009
€000's €000's €'000°s €000's
Safety, environment and mobulity 4,569 32 4,601 4,896
Motor sport safety 6,785 (139) 6,646 5,402

Research, fellowships,

memberships and affilations 129 - 129 (29)
11,483 (107) 11,376 10,269

Detalled descnptions of each grant are provided in the Trustees' Reporl

Each grant recipient received one grant, althocugh this may have been payable in more than one

tranche All grants were made to institutions and were restricted to the purpose for which the grant was

approved
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7 Direct expenditure

Expenditure was as follows Detailled descriphons of each project are provided in the Trustees’ Report

Safety, environment and mobility

Designated funds

Environmental Policy and Research Programme

FIA Afncan Union Road Safety Co-ordination project

First Global Mimstenial Conference on Road Safety, Moscow
Global Road Safety Activities

International Seat Belt Vacaine Initative

Make Roads Safe

Road Safety and Tounsm

Road Scholarship Programme

Seat Belt Safety

Travel Fund for “Decade of Action Meeting” iIn Rome

Trave! fund for launch of Make Roads Safe, Africa in Tanzania
Urban Mobility Programme

Restricted funds

eSafetyAware!

Latin NCAP Car Testing Programme
Make Roads Safe Hellas

Safety, environment and mobility

Motor Sport Safety
Restnicted funds
Motor Sport Safety Development Fund

Research, fellowships, memberships and affiliations
Designated funds
Fellowships

Representational activittes and external commumications
Designated funds

External Representation

FIA Foundation Website

International Policy Forum

Publicity

Working Groups

Total direct expenditure
Expenditure from designated reserves

Expenditure from restncted funds
Direct Expenditure

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
€000's €000's
443 311
120 56
75 489

- 2

130 -
819 2,207

5 26

133 a9

- 80

- 72

- 118

42 -
1,767 3,460
836 23
549 -
50 -
1,435 23
3,202 3,483
1,383 1,554
50 50
177 107

3 27

107 101
63 63

9 11

359 309
4,994 5,396
2,176 3,819
2,818 1,577
4,994 5,396
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8 Support and indirect costs

Legal Invest-
Office, and ment
Staff premises Trustees’ profess- manage-
costs and IT expenses ional ment 2010 2009
€000's €000's €000's €000’s €000's €000's €000's
Costs of
managing
investments 62 14 - 7 1,184 1,267 1,278
Safety,
environment and
mobility 904 243 - 113 - 1,260 1,238
Motor sport safety 132 14 - 74 - 220 132
Research,
fellowships,
memberships and
affikations 94 23 - 12 - 129 114
Representational
activities
and external
communications 304 106 - 46 - 456 456
Governance costs 295 80 122 87 - 584 592
1,791 480 122 339 1,184 3,916 3,810

Costs that relate directly 10 an employee are allocated against the activities they undertake

Support and indirect costs are apportioned on the basis of the number of full time equivalent staff

Trustees’ expenses, legal and professional fees, and investment management fees are charged directly

to the actwities they relate to

9 Net incoming resources

This 1s stated after

Auditor's remuneration
Audit services
Non-audit services

Depreciation
Owned tangible fixed assets

Irrecoverable VAT
Exchange losses on monetary assets

Rents recervable under operating leases

Year ended
31 December
2010

€000's

24
4
127
85
140

ST7

Year ended
31 December
2009

€000's

22
8
126
48
25
532
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10 Employees

Staff costs dunng the year were as follows

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

€000's €000's

Salanes 1,336 1,327
Social secunty costs 163 152
Pension costs 128 107
1,627 1,586

The average number of employees dunng the year analysed by actiity on a full time basis was

Number Number

2010 2009

€000's €000's

Cost of managing investments - -
Safety, environment and mobility 9 11
Motor sport safety - -
Research, fellowships, memberships and affihlations 1 1
Representational activites and external communications 3 3
Governance costs 3 3
16 18

The emoluments of employees dunng the year, whose gross pay and benefits (excluding employer
pension contributions) fell within the following bands

Number Number

2010 2009

€ 0 - € 50,000 3 5
€ 50,000 - € 60,000 2 3
€ 60,000-€ 70,000 3 2
€ 80,000-€ 50,000 2 2
€ 90,000 - €100,000 - 2
€100,000 - €110,000 2 -
€110,000 - €120,000 - 1
€120,000 - €130,000 1 2
€130,000 - €140,000 2 -
€140,000 - €150,000 1 1
16 18

Duning the year the following amounts were paid to higher paid employees (employees eaming over
€58,000) as shown above

2010 2009
€000°s €000's
Pension contnbuttons to money purchase pension schemes 112 93

Dunng the year 9 (2009 9) higher paid employees participated in money purchase pension schemes
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1 Payments to Trustees

Expense reimbursements payable to 12 Trustees (2009 11 trustees) for the penod amounted to
€122,000 (2009 €145,000) and can be analysed as follows

Travel and subsistence

Year ended
31 December

2010
€000's

122

Year ended
31 December
2009

€000's

145

No other Trustee or person with a family or business connection with a Trustee received any
remuneration directly or indirectly from the charnty :n the year or the prior year

12 Tangible fixed assets

Freehold
land,
buildings
and Fixtures,
improve- fithngs, and Computer
ments equipment equipment Total
€000's €000’s €000's €000’s
Cost
At 1 January 2010 4,948 205 83 5,236
Additions - 9 45 54
Disposals - (4) (37) (41)
At 31 December 2010 4,948 210 91 5,249
Depreciation
At 1 January 2010 676 194 53 923
Charge for the year 99 4 24 127
Eliminated on disposal - {3) (36) 39
At 31 December 2010 775 195 41 1,011
Net book amount as at
31 December 2010 4173 15 50 4,238
Net book amount as at
31 December 2009 4272 11 30 4313
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13 Fixed assets investments

Cash held as
part of the
Investment Listed investment
properties investments portfolio Total
€000’s €000's €000's €000's
At 1 January 2010 9,716 309,347 4,238 323,301
Net transfers to cash - - (21,013) (21,013)
Shares purchased - 326,450 (326,450) -
Dividends received - - 5,104 5,104
Interest received - - 42 42
Movement in accrued
income - - 1,120 1,120
Other income - - 33 33
Interest and charges paid - - {1,008) (1,0086)
Realised gains/(losses) - 5,654 (7.,695) (2,041)
Unrealised investment
(losses)/gains (1,377) 30,922 204 29,749
Unrealised exchange
losses on monetary assets - - (5,195} (5,195)
Proceeds from disposals - (365,341) 365,341 -
At 31 December 2010 8,339 307,032 14,723 330,094

The investment properties are held entirely within the United Kingdom  Investment properties are
valued at open market value On 31 March 2011 a desktop valuation was undertaken by Montagu
Evans, Chartered Surveyors The Sterling valuation at this date was £7,166,000 The basis of the
valuation I1s existing use subject to the existing and proposed leases This desktop valuation has been
incorporated into the financial statements as an estimation of the value of the properties at the year end
A full valuation will be undertaken on 31 December 2011  The deficit, ansing from revaluation and
fluctuations in the exchange rate, has been transferred to unreahsed gains in the Statement of Financial

Activities

Listed investments are stated at their mid-market values as at the balance sheet date

The value of the fixed asset investments held within and outside the United Kingdom, analysed by type

of iInvestment 1s as follows

UK listed equity investments

UK fixed and vanable interest stocks

UK alternative investments

Overseas listed equity iInvestments
Overseas fixed and vanable interest stocks
Overseas altemative investments

Overseas property investment funds

UK Investment properties

Cash held as part of the investment portfolio

2010 2009
€000’s €000’s
23,228 19,889

2,011 6,164
2,506 -
215,799 192,816
55,348 85,806
1,370 4,672
6,770 -
8,339 8,716
14,723 4,238
330,094 323,301

When analysed by relative market value at the year end, the funds are invested 72 4% in equities (2009
65 8% ), 17 4% in bonds (2009 28 4%), 1 1% n altemative investments (2009 1 4%), 4 5% n cash

(2009 1 4%} and 4 6% n properties (2009 3 0%)

At the year end, an amount equivalent to €nil (2009 €6,000) of the cash held by fund managers as part
of the investment portfolio was denominated in sterling, and the balance was denominated in other

currencies
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Dernvatives are recognised in the batance sheet at fair value The Foundation uses options and forward

currency contracts as descnbed below

Options are used by two managers to protect the portfolio from market nsks Use of options 1s at the
discretion of the Board of Trustees and must be for defensive reasons with the maximum investment not
exceeding 25% of the total value of the portfollo  The cost of options at 31 December 2010 was
€857,000 (2009 €150,000), with a market valuation of €215,000 (2009 €15,000) Options are included

withun hsted invesiments

Forward currency contracts are used by all investment managers to reduce currency exposure in the
portfolio The basis of fair value of these forward exchange contracts 1s estimated by using the gain or
loss that would anse from closing the contract at the balance sheet date The less ansing on forward
currency contracts at 31 December 2010 was €5,070,000 (2009 €3,802,000) The losses are included

within cash held as part of the investment portfolio

If the listed nvestments and investment properties had not been revalued, they would have been

included on the histoncal costs basis at the following amounts

2010 2009
€000's €000's
Listed investments 269,036 286,478
Investment properties 13,480 13,490
282,526 299,968

No individual investments compnse over 5% of the value of the porifolio

14 Debtors

2010 2009
€000’s €000’s
Prepayments 47 68
Accrued income 874 1,934
Other debtors 9,414 7,304
10,335 9,308

Included in the above are the following amounts, relating to grants paid in advance, due after more than

one year

2010 2009
(As restated)
€000’s €000's
Other debtors 5,425 6,050

15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2010 2009
€000's €000's
Grants committed but not paid over 2,913 2,228
Other creditors 290 96
Accruals 612 1,607
Social secunty and other taxes 39 26
3,854 3,957
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16  Designated funds

Internally managed projects

Donations Changes
and n
At1 design- design- Grants At 31
January ations in ation in committed December
Project Name 2010 the year the year in the year 2010
€000's €000's €000's €000°'s €000's
Safety, environment and mobility
Chmate Change
Programme 60 - - - 60
Environmental Policy and
Research Programme 277 240 50 (443) 124
FIA African Union Road
Safety Co-ordination
project 9 160 11 (120) -
First Global Ministerial
Conference on Road
Safety, Moscow 61 - 14 (75) -
international Seat Belt
Vaccine Inihiative - 250 - (130) 120
Make Roads Safe 6 770 43 (819) -
Road Safety and Tounsm 29 - - {5) 24
Road Safety Scholarship
Programme 70 100 - (133) a7
Trave! fund for “Decade
of Action Meeting” in
Rome 2 - (2) - -
Global Road Safety
Activities 28 - (23) - S
Urban Mobility -
Programme 100 - {42) 58
World NCAP 50 - - - 50
592 1,560 83 (1,767) 478
Research, fellowships,
memberships and affilations
Fellowships - 50 - (50} -
Representational activities and
external communications
Exiernal representation 139 150 30 (177) 142
Website 10 40 (40) (3} 7
International Policy
Forum - 100 7 (107) -
Publicity - 60 3 (63) -
Working Groups 9 - - (9) -
158 350 - {359) 149
Total 750 4,960 83 (2,176) 627

The above designated funds were established in the pnor penod and dunng the year for the purposes
described in the Trustees’ Report Grants are made in accordance with the grant making policy as
descnbed within the Trustees’ Report  Applications must meet at least one of the general or specific
objectives of the chanty The funds are represented by cash and shori-term deposits
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17 Unrestricted funds

Designated Revaluation General
funds reserve funds Total
€000's €000's €000's €000’s
At 1 January 2010 750 16 466 290,762 307,978
Incoming resources 20 - 5,192 5212
Costs of managing investments - - (1,191) (1,191)
Safety, environment and mobility expenditure - - (7,533) {7,533)
Motor sport safety expenditure - - (2,108) (2,108)
Research, fellowships, memberships and
affilations expenditure - - (308) {308)
Representattonal activities and external
commumcations expenditure - - (816) (816)
Governance Costs - - (584) (584}
Designation for purposes listed in the Trustees’
Report 1,940 - {(1,940) -
Changes in designation 93 - (93) -
Grants commutted (2,176) - 2,176 -
Transfer to restncted funds - - (300) {300}
Unrealised gains - 28,506 {5,020) 23,486
Gains eliminated on disposal - (15,169) - {15,169)
Realsed gains - - 12,718 12,718
At 31 December 2010 627 29,803 290,955 321,385
18 Restricted Funds
Transfers Net
At1 from un- invest- At 31
January Incoming Resources restricted ment December
2010 resources expended funds gains 2010
€000’s €000’s €000's €000's €000’s €000's
Safety, environment and mobihity
eSafetyAware! - 899 (930) - - (31)
LatinNCAP Car
Testing -
Programme - 259 (549} 300 10
Make Roads Safe
Hellas 100 - {50) - - 50
Motor Sport Safety
Motor Sport Safety
Development Fund 39,320 877 (6,217) - 1,478 35,458
39,420 2,035 (7,746) 300 1,478 35,487

Purpose and restnction in use
eSafetyAware!

To fund the pan European information campaign con Electronic Stability Control in cars  The fund 1s 1n
deficit at the year end The Foundation 1s awaiting the next tranche of grant funding from the European

Commission which will ekminate this

LatinNCAP Car Testing Programme

To fund the crash testing programme for Latin Amencan cars

Make Roads Safe — Greece

To fund a Make Roads Safe Hellas Campaign tn Greece

FIA Motor Sport Safety Development Fund

For disbursement over 5 years in 3 areas These are Motor sport officials’ safety training, Motor sport
facility improvement through a consultancy programme, and Young moter sport dnver safety training
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19  Analysis of net assets between funds

Unrestncted Restricted Total
funds funds 2010
€000's €000’s €000’s

Fund balances are represented by
Tangible fixed assets 4,238 - 4,238
Investments 302,142 27952 330,094
Current assets 16,966 9,428 26,394
Current habilities {1,961) (1,893) {3,854)
Total net assets 321,385 35,487 356,872

20 Capital commitments

The chanty did not have any capital commitments at 31 December 2010 or 31 December 2009

21 Contingent assets/liabilities

There were no contingent assets or iabilities at 31 December 2010 or 31 December 2009

22 Leasing commitments

Operating lease payments amounting to €36,000 (2008 €75,000) are due wathin one year The leases
to which these amounts relate expire as follows

2010 2009

Land and Land and
builldings Other buildings Other
€'000's €'000's €000's €000's
In one year or less - - 24 -

Between one and five

years - 36 - 51
- 36 24 51

23 Related party transactions

Expense reimbursements of €122,000 (2009 €145,000) were due to the Trustees, as disclosed th note
11 Of these amounts €9,000 (2009 €7,000) were outstanding at the year end

Grants have been made for the benefit of projects run by the FIA Foundation for the Autornobile and
Society member organisations as disclosed in the Trustees Report

Grants have also been made to organisations related to the Trustees as follows

The Fédération Intemationale de 'Automobile {FIA) 1s connected to Mr J Todt, who 1s the President of
the FIA

The following Trustees are also connected to the FIA by wirtue of the position they hold in their own
national club  Mr C Gérondeau 1s the former President of the Autasmabile Club — Association Frangaise
des Automobihistes (ACAFA) (formerly Federation Frangaise des Automobile-Clubs et des Usagers de la
Route {(FFAC)), Mr C Macaya Is the President of the Automowil Club de Costa Rica (ACCR), Mr S
Tanaka 1s the President of the Japan Automobile Federation (JAF), Mr D Njoroge 1s the Director General
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of the Automobile Association of Kenya (AAK), and Mr B Perko 1s the former President for the Avto-Moto
Zveza Slovenie (AMZS} The ACAFA, ACCR, ACA, JAF, AAK and AMZS are all members of the FIA
and the FIA Foundation for the Automobtle and Society

Mrs J Despotopoulou 1s mamed to Mr V Despotopoulos, the President of the Automobile and Tounng
Club of Greece (ELPA) ELPA 1s a member of the FIA and FIA Foundation for the Automobile and
Society

Grants of €87,000 (2008 €30,000) were awarded to the FIA in year (as disclosed in the Trustees’
Report) €30,000 (2009 €60,000) was outstanding at the year end The FIA rented office and
warehouse space from the FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society dunng the year The rent
receved from the rental agreements was €148,000 (2009 €152,000) of which €nil (2009 €nil} was
outstanding at the year end The FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society also rented office
space from the FIA dunng the year Rent paid to the FIA amounted to €23,000 (2009 €24,000) of which
€nil {2009 €nil) was outstanding at the year end All rental agreements were at amm’s length At 31
December 2010 €65,000 (2009 €43,000) was due to the Foundation for goods purchased on behalf of
the FIA €30,000 (2009 €30,000) was due to the FIA for goods purchased on behalf of the Foundation

Mr J Todt 1s the Campaign President of the e-Safety Aware communication platform Grants of €250,000
(2009 €760,000) were awarded to eSafetyAware! AISBL dunng the year (as disclosed in the Trustees’
Report), of which €8,000 (2009 €44,000) was outstanding at the yearend In 2009 the Foundation
provided funds of €244,000 as a bank guarantee to eSafetyAware' AISBL, in order for them to recewve
grant funding from the European Unton This money will be returned to the Foundation once the grant
agreement 1s finalised in 2011

Dunng the year the Foundation acted as a coordinator for the European Commission funded project
“eSafety Challenge and Awareness Raising” €153,000 {2009 €nil) was paid to eSafetyAware' AISBL,
and €123,585 (2009 €nil) was paid to the FIA for work completed on this project €15,000 and €17,000
(2009 €nil) was due to the Foundation from eSafetyAware! AISBL and the FIA respectively for project
costs paid on their behalf

Ms M Yeoh 1s the partner of Mr J Todt Ms Yeoh 1s the Make Roads Safe Global Ambassador for the
Foundation The Foundation paid Ms Yeoh's travel and subsistence expenses in connection with the
Campaign No additional fees were paid to Ms Yeoh, who kindly donated her time to the Foundation

Mr C Macaya Is the President of the Automovil Club de Costa Rica (ACCR) Grants of €27,000 (2009
€nil) were awarded to the Automowvil Club de Costa Rica (ACCR) in the year from the Motor Sport Safety
Development Fund (as disclosed in the Trustees’ Report) €5,000 (2009 €nil) was outstanding at the
year end

Mr D Njoroge 1s the Director General of the Automobile Association of Kenya (AAK) €1,000 (2009 €nil)
was due to the AAK at the year end in respect of travel expenses for a participant to the Foundation's
Scholarship Programme

Mr J Dawson and Mr D Ward are directors of the International Road Assessment Programme (IRAP)
Grants of €300,000 per year for a penod of 10 years were awarded in the year ended 31 December
2006 (1 e €3 milhon in total) to the International Road Assessment Programme (as disclosed in the
Trustees’ Report) All of the 10 year Grant has been paid to IRAP  An additonal €1,000,000 (2009
€1,000,000) was awarded to iRAP dunng the current year of which €nil (2009 €nil) was outstanding at
the year end

Mr D Ward served on the Management Board of the FIA Institute for Motor Sport Safety for the whole
year Grants of €1,800,000 (2009 €3,600,000) were awarded to the FIA Institute for Motor Sport Safety
in the year (as disclosed in the Trustees’ Report), of which €24,000 (2009 €18,000) was outstanding at
the year end The Institute also recewved a grant of €180,000 (2009 €nil) from the Motor Sport Safety
Development Fund (as disclosed in the Trustees' Report), of which €180,000 (2009 €nil) was
outstanding at the year end

The FIA Institute for Motor Sport Safety rented office space from the FIA Foundation for the Automobile
and Society during the year The rent received from the rental agreements was €3,000 (2009 €nil) of
which €nil {2009 €ntl) was outstanding at the year end At 31 December 2010 €7,000 (2008 €8,000)
was due to the Foundation for goods purchased on behalf of the FIA Instiiute for Motor Sport Safety
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The FIA Institute for Motor Sport Safety charged management fees of €1,247,000 (2009 €1,331,000) in
connection with the Motor Sport Safety Development Fund At 31 December 2010 €1,230,000 (2009
€nil} was due to the Foundation in respect of grant monies paid to the FIA Institute for Motor Sport
Safety, which had not been distnbuted to grant recipients at the year end A further €1,292,000 (2009
€nil) was due to the Foundation in respect of grants monies paid to the FIA Institute for Motor Sport
Safety, where the grant had subsequently been cancelled These monies were repaid to the fund in
2011

The Foundation designated €100,000 (2009 €75,000) dunng the year to the Road Safety Schalarship
Programme of which €37,000 (2009 €70,000) was outstanding at the year end The Scholarship
Programme 15 run by Ms E MacLennan Ms E MaclLennan 1s marned to Mr D Ward, the Director
General of the FIA Foundation for the Automobile and Society

Ms E MacLennan is also the Director of the Eastern Alliance for Safe and Sustainable Transport
(EASST) Grants of €100,000 (2009 €50,000) were awarded to EASST dunng the year of which €nil
(2009 €25,000) was outstanding at the year end

24  Controlling related parties

The Trustees consider that there 15 no controlling refated party
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